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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2023-24 2022-23
Income £000'S % EDD0°S % |
Funding Body Grants 14,317 B4% 12920 ] B5% |
Education Conlracts 788 5% [l 5%
' Tultion Fees and Charges 584 3% B71 4% |
Other Operating Income 1,158 T% &84 5%
Investmant Income 225 1% 52 1%
17,082 100% 15,264 | 100%
Expenditurs
Staff Costs 11,283 £4% 10,784 | 52%
| Other Operating Expenses 5,082 28% 6179 | 30%
Depreciation 1,192 % 1,284 8%
Interest Payabie 20 - L1 -
17,577 | 100% 17,304 | 100%
(Deficit) j424) | (2,050)
Conzolidatad Balance Sheet
2023-24 2022-23
B £000s E000s |
Mon-Currant Assets 28,048 28,376
Imvestment in Joint Venlure - .
Current Assets 3524 4,038 |
Currant Liahilitkes {3.682) (4,013}
Met Current Assets 32 25
28,080 28,401
Creditors due after 1 year (23,423} (22,724)
Provisians
(218) {236}
Total Net Assets 4,440 5,441
Restricted reserves
Revaluation resanve 146 T
. Designated reserve 200 175
| Income & Expenditure 4.004 4,889
4,440 5441




STRATEGIC REPORT

NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES
The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2024

Legal Status

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and is an exempt charity
for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011, regulated by the Secretary of State for Education. The
members of the Govarning body, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on pages 54-55.

The Corporation was incorporated on 1% Aprl 1983 as West Cumbria College. On B August 2001, the
Sacretary of State granted consent to the Corporation to change the College’s name to Lakes College West
Cumbria.

Mission
Lakes College has a vision to be an ambitious technical college that enhances the prosperity and prespects

of our pecple and communibies.

Char mission and purpose (s 1o defiver excellent technical and professional skills to enhance the prosparity of
our people and communities.

In delivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benafits through the advancement of education

by providing high quality leaching, widening paricipation and tackling social exclusion, prioritising student
achievement and employment outcomes to meet the skills requirements of employers, primarily in West
Cumbria. The College is commitied to finding suitable courses for as many students as possible, regardiess

of their educational background, to support them lo succeed,

The College sirives to serve its local and national community by werking in collaboration with key stakeholders,
1o support the implemantation of the Lecal Skills iImprovement Plan and working with &mployers to meet the
skills needs of West Cumbria. This is exemplified in our position as a founding member of the Mational College
for Muclear (NGN) in partnership with Sellafield Ltd, University of Cumbria, EDF Energy, Bridgwater and
Taunton College and the University of Bristol. The NCIN places the College at the centre of national nuclear
skills development, The Morhern Hub commenced operations in September 2017 and extendgd operations
focus on HE provision in January 2018. The NCIN now offers a wide range of higher apprenticeships up to
full honours degrees which can secure professional chartership,

All four Cumbria FE Colleges continue to work collaboratively to support the Counly's skills needs, most
recently in collaboration under the Local Skills Improvement Fund (LSIF) led by Lakes College

In 2014, Lakes College was confirmed as a UK Quality Assured establishment foliowing & Quality Assurance
Agency for Higher Education (QAA) review. In 2018/18, we secured Offica for Students (OF5) registration as
a HE Provider. During 2022-23 we re-secured Matrix, 15O 9001, IS0 14001 and Cyber Essentials Plus

accreditations.
In July 2020 the college established a fully owned subsidiary company, Lakes College Enterprises Ltd, for the
immediate purpose of transferring cleaning services to the company. These services were fransferred on 1%

August 2020 and catering services followed on 1% July 2021. The subsidiary activities will be further widenad
in 2024/25 as a vehicle 1o support a further TUPE transfer to our group, in support of new apprenticeship

provision.
The College has supported over 800 employers in meeting their skills needs.

(]



STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Strategic Priorities
We stive to defiver exosllent technical and professional skills to enhance the prosperity of our people and
communities by:

+ Delivering local, regional and national skills priorities to all by collaborating and parinering with
employvers and key stakeholders,

+ Delivering innovative, ambilious and responsive sclutions o meet changing prionties and neads.

«  Supporting our staff to build careers defivering exceptional services, theraby dalivering sustainable
operations and finances through consstently excellent provision

The cverall objective over the next two academic years is to refumn the Callege to a sownd, sustainable financial
position, whitst maintaining measured responsiveness and high standards of defivery. We will secune this by

+ Achieving a solvent financial posiion meeling al key financial largels, underpinned by a sound
business model and appropriate financial control;
« Prioritising ‘consolidated growth’ whereby we maintain responsiveness to regional skills and national
prioritias basad on
o Selecting oppartunities thal match sound business model criteria and acceptable ROI;
o Divest of provision that cannot meet sound busginess model and ROI criteria;
+  Improve efficiency and effectiveness
o Ensure the re-alignment and organisation structure is fit for purpose;
o Clear accountability and responsibility are known and understood at the appropriate level,
o Resourcas ara uliksed effeclively and eificienthy in delivery;
o Minimize waste and reach back work;
o Ensuring college systems are it for purpose and suppor stafl o operate efficiently;
+ |nnowvation in planning and delhery;
+ Support our peopla with Riedbdlity, reward and recognifion;
« Progress beyond consistently 'Good;’
= Conlinue to coflaborate and pariner to delivar our kay objectives.
» Implemeant and embed a culture change programme o suppart all to be accountable and responsible
for defivering our key objectives

Current and Future Developments and Performance

In 2023 the College was awarded the Queen’s Anniversary Prize for its outstanding work in developing highly
skilled technicians for the UK's nuclear and low carbon energy sectors. The work, developed collaboratively
with industry experts and accredifted by the Matonal College for Nuclear, piays a crucial rale in shaping site-
ready professionals for vital UK industries.

in January 2024 the College celebrated a glowing Ofsted report rating fts provision 'Good' overall, Inspecions
said; "Leaders use their acute understanding of kocal and regional neads and the challenges specific to the
locality bo inform strategic planning of cumiculums and the college's offer.” The College was rated 'Good’ in
eight areas assessed, with Adult learning programmaes rated ‘Requires Improvement’,

In summer 2024 we were awarded a significant and prestigious apprenticeship contract which commenced in
September 2024 and meets the College’s strateqgic objectives.

Whilst the above successes featured in 2023/24 the college finances were challenged foliowing two years of
significant financial losses as the College grew in response lo meeting local skills needs. This resulted in the
request of financial support in the form of 8 Department for Education (DFE) loan of £1.5m lo support warking
capital This loan is repayable by July 2027, Previously the College had no loans. The College |5 wiorking
effectively with the FE Commissioner team to support financial improvement pianning. This financial
intervantion will lzad to an FE Commissionar led a Structure and Prospects Appraisal (SPA) in Spring 2025,



STRATEGIC REPORT {continuad)

Financial Performance and Regsources

The College experienced a 12% increase in turnover from E15m to £16.8m following an 11% increase he
previous year. Dependency on ESFA grant income decressed marginally to78% (2022-23: 80%). Despite
continued growth, the college generated an operating deficit of £529,000 as a result of continued increases in
staff costs and non-pay costs.

Operating cash flow was E873,000 net outflow compared 1o 2,259,000 outflow in 2022-23.

The Adult Education Budget was marginally under commitied with a small clawback against Free Courses for
Jobs offer, 16-18 numbers increased by 10% on top of growth of 7% the previous year. Apprenticeship stars
were maintained, whilst in-learning numbers continue to grow, resulting In 19% growth in income. This
demonsirates the increéasing balance of defivery on apprenticaships, our priority growth area.

The College does not have a formal reserves policy, but recognises the importance of reserves in the financial
stability of any organisation and ensures that there are adequate reserves to support the College's core

aclivities. The College reserves include £200,000 fior a 3G pifch sink fund. As at the balance sheet date, the
incoma and expanditure reserve stands at £4,052,000. For the second year the Local Government Pension

Schemse provision i in surplus position £4.6m (2023: £3.7m surpbus) with an asset cap applied ,

It is the Corporation’s intention to increase reserves over the fife of the new strategic plan through the
generation of annual operating surpluses for the purposes of re-investing in College resources

On the basls of the financial recovery plan delvering growth, a significant apprenticaship conlract, improving
financial health performance and the suppart of the DfE working capital lean and improving cash reserves the
Corporation considers that accounting basis of Going Concemn is appropriate for the foreseeable future.

During the sccounting period 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024, the College paid 30% (2023:62%) of its involces
within 30 days, average days lo pay 61 (2023 average 35 days), against the Treasury target of 85%. The
College incurred no intérest charges in respect of late paymaent this period.

Available cash reserves (cash plus investments, less bank loan and restricted funds ) stand at £0.5m af the
balance sheet date (2022-23: £1.8m), Limited inwvestment was made in year over grant funded investment.
The college campus is in exceflent condition following several years of investment and development in

technical areas.

Where avallable, investments, cash reserves and borrowing are managed in accordance with the Treasury
Management Policy, designed o minimise financial risk in treasury management. The DIE loan is repayable
by July 2027, tha College will remain in financial intervention until the loan is repaid. The loan can be repaid

garlier if financial recovery and funds allow

The staffing establishment increased by 2% after @ 9% increase in the previous year. Of the 249 FTEs, 57%
are delhvery staff and a further 19% are directly student facing.

Future Key Davelopments
Future developments ara focused on financial recovery and the upcoming SPA process.

The Sellafield apprenticeship contract is operational from September 2024 and will suppor our financial
racovery whilst delivering on our key objectives. The contract delivers on enginesring standards at level 2,3

and B,

Following exdensive curriculum development on Higher Education qualifications, newly Open University

validated qualifications will be delivered from September 2024, A HE digital modular offer i also launched and
expected 1o be popular, Mew degress will be validated with the University of Cumbsia in avtumn 2024

The T-Level offer will be enhanced for 2025/26 with additional engineering routes. Growth in High Needs
provision is expected, in response to the refreshed offer. Increasing NEET and unempioyed offers, often
supported by the County Gouncil, continue ko grow.



STRATEGIC REFORT {continued)

Qur offer is extanding via the National College for Muclear and construction depariments fo meet the skills
needs (o meet the low carbon economy skills needs,

Government policy for economic growth has a strong skills focus with further education recognised as a key
part of the solution to economic recovery with:

= [nvestment in delivery of Local Skills Imvesimant Plans.
» A confinued focus on apprenticeships and life-long learning, with addilional flaxibisies expecied,
=  On-going investment in the FE estats to meeat modarn curriculum neads.

The college estate is recognised on the balance sheet at cost and current operaling conditions are not
considarad bo result in an impairmaent 1o the value of assels,

The Conporation has reviewed the financial position and considers that the College has adequate resgurces to
continue in operational excellence for the foreseeable fufure. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going
concarm basis in prepasing the financal statements,

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The College continues to work to sirengthen the internal conirel environmend, {incheding financial and
operational risk management) which is designed 1o protect the College’s assets, reputation and financial
sustainability. The College maintaing a nisk register, which s reviewed, termiy 1o agssess risks and the
effectiveness of mitigating actions

Oullined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the College, not all the factors are
within the College’s contrel. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the College.

1. Fallure to maintain the financial viability of the College

2022523 delivered substantial operating loss despite significant growth in line with the financial strategy. This
continued into 202324, leading to the need to secure a DFE working capital loan in June 2024, The College
strategy has moved io one of consoidated growth whilst we rebase costs bo seclor norms against income
lavels with a single improvamant plan in place.

The coliege financial recovery plan aims o secure sustainable growth by

s Continuing o meest employer's skills needs by develop our apprenticeship offer, particulady in
Engineering and Construction;

= |Delwer the Sellafield Apprenticeship contract from 2024725,

» Embedding the Apprenticeship Academy recruitment senvice for employers,

«  Continued growth in 16-19 contract with the development of the T-Level offer for 2023724 and beyond,

v Review of the adull re-skilling offer and delivery plan:

v  Development of the Higher Education offer with the Open University;

« Delivary of HE modular oplion;

+ increasing curriculum innovation and efficiency, including review of delivery models and parinership
wiorking;

» Dedicaled apprentice progress and compliance coaches to support efficient and effective
apprenticeship delivery:

# |mprovements o college systems and reporting o support increaged accountability for financial
performance across the organisation;

= |ncreasing devolvement of financial responsibiity and commaercial awaranass,

» Reduclion in renied property.

These measures will support the collage to reburn o Good and sustainable financial health,



STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

2 Government funding

The College has considerable rellance on continued government funding through the further education sector
funding bodies and OfS, In 2023/24, 5% (2022723 85%) of the College's revenue was ullimatsly pubdic funded.
High inflation rates and increases in employmant costs have wiped out any recent increases in funding rates

The risk is mitigated in 8 number of ways:

the College is seeking to increasa full cost provision which is not dependent on government funding:
maximising fee income delivering quality education and training needed by employers and for students io
progress into employment;
» development of tha STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics) provision to suppont
growth in this area, both classroom based and apprenticeship. Ensuring that progression routes exist 1o
higher technical skills and local skills pricrities;
seeking continued growth in apprenticeship provision where the business case supports this growth;

extending geographical reach;

Mational College for Nuclear development to meet sector skills requirements;

focus and investment in developing and maintaining relationships with key stakeholder bodies in our
iocality and nationally in the nuclear seclor;

developmant of the Civil Engsneering Training facility,

partnership and collaboration as evidenced by NCIN, SDF, LSIF and Cumbria FE College collaboration;
improwving the efficiency and effectivenass of delivery modeis;

improve financial accountability across the College:

aiming to manage costs within funding constraints;

process improvement activity

3 Apprenticeship Delivary

Appranticeships now form almaost 40% of College provision, ahead of seclor norms. Apprenticeships are a key
vehicle to meet local skills and deliver the College growth strategy, however, create funding compliance risks
due ta the rigour of the compliance regime which impacts on all stakehoiders in the appranticeship market.
The weighting of funding to completion adds to the financial and quality risk.

This risk is mitigated by:-

Vigikance in monitoring funding updates and employer incentives,
Whaole process and systems riview,

GCommissioning of external suppod,

Staff training;

= Lisison with OIE and ESFA staff,

Enhanced internal audit coverage and support;

s Support for employers;
s Dedicated structure for on-boarding, progress maonitoring and compliance

& @ @ @

4. Ofsted Inspecton

Whilst we have recently achieved a Good Ofsted grade, we must embeéd our improvement activity as part of
our continuous improvemnent and 1o aveid the risk of a poor Ofsted ingpection in the future. Our Beyond Good
agenda frames this improvement activity and is securing measurable improvements.

This rigk is mitigaled in 8 number of ways:

« Adapting of our Teaching, Leaming and Assessment methodology.
« Development of a Trauma informed approach o supporting leamers to achiave,



STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES [continued]

# Engagement in sector and Ofsted quality forums;

Support for part-ime Cifsted Inspector stalf member.

Internal and extermnal quality assurance activity,

Setting of targets at upper quartibe level to drive ferther improvement;
Revision of our maths and English policy and strategy.

5. Increasing competition

The devedopment of alternative provision based lecally (University of Cumbria, private providers, Energy Coast
UTC and Academy schoeis); in a tough operating environment for all represent a risk to the growth stralegy al
the College.

This risk is being mitigated by

seeking growth in curriculem areas for which there s known increasing demand;
T-Leval offer;

improwing marketing, recruitment and admissions processes;

develcpment of the Apprenticeship Academy;

extending provision into the Carlisle area in response to employer demand,
increasing apprenticeship provision as a key prioity;

jointly leading the National Coflage for Nuclear,

securing Sellafield Lid apprenticeship contract;

quality improwvament actvity to suppaori demand,

collaborating where cpporiunities allow, including leading on collaborativa bids;
reviewing the business delivery model, parbculardy in the light of a blended learming model,

6. Impact of national policy on English and maths on future recruitment, student altainment levels and
OFSTED judgement

As a College supporting deprived students the condition of funding requirament to deliver English and maths
GCSEs to all 16-18 students whose prior attainment level is a 3 is a risk in terms of sludent recruitment,
rebention, engagemant, achievernent rates and thereby Ofsted grading. A large proportion of our lsamers join
us without achieving their maths and English at school, 56% of our leamers need a maths and English formal
qualification, with 26% needing both, this compares favourably to §8% and 47% for general Further Education
Celleges nationally, Urgent actions to further improve achievement rates in English and maths include:

= Consisient use of new teaching and learning resounces;

= A focus on changing mend-sets anound maths and English;

= Engaging early with students and parents in English and maths, building on kessons learmed in a
collaborative teaching and learming project;

# Reviewing the maths and English policy and extending funchanal skilts,

= Adapling Springboard assessment pericd to support assessment and developmant of foundation
literacy and numeracy skills,

» Increasing emphasis on achizvement of all elements of the study programme including English and
maths;

recruiling specialist qualified maths and English wkors;

suppodding tulors to be Awarding Body markers of GCSE papers,

providing additional support senvices 1o support student achlevemeant;

increasing focus on evidencing progress in leaming,;

focussing on maths and English at for weekly review points, reviewing attendance and engagamant.

STRATEGIC REPORT (continuwed)
FRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAIMTIES {continued)

T. 5Staff recruitment

Alongside FE sector funding challenges, the pay gap between FE and schocis and indusiry has worsaned,
increasing the challenge of atiracting and refaining specialist vocational staff

7



The recruitment of teaching staff to some vocational areas, in particular STEM, continues to represent a risk
to the quality of provision, delivery of contracts and growth strategy of the College. Government FE recruitment
drives and the introduction of largeted retention incentives provide some support in critical areas.

The rural and ispiated kacation of the College reguires us to ‘grow our own’ teaching staff from industry meaning
support and development of our staffing establishment is critical to our success.

This risk is being mitigated by:

= reviewing staff recruitmant, pay policy and struciures io provide greater flexibdity and opportunities for
candidates with appropriate skills;

« development of the associate model to meet specialist skills requirements and increase flexibility in
meeting employer needs;

+ implementing alternative delivery methods and oplions;

» increasing focused staff development and 'growing your cwn',

« securing DfE support funds and targeted retention payments supports atiraction and retention of
industry specialisis;

s increasing support for new teaching staff.

8. Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities

The financial statements report the share of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) on the College’s
batance sheet in ling with the requirements of FRS 102, In line with most public seclor pension schemes a
pension deficit usually axists for the College, though this was reversed in 2022/23 with 8 surplus position
reported, this surplus further increased in 2023/24, as detailed in 15. The College has applied an asset ceiling
cap in reporting the pension surplus position. The College is not required to contribute any additional deficit
funding to the scheme. The pension scheme is managed for long-term return, and though the current surplus
position is welcome, it is important to be aware that market conditions could reverse this position

Application of the McCloud remedy is now active and may result in additional pension Eabilities for some
mambars which are provided for within actuary estimates utiised in these financial statements. The sk is
monitored by regular actuarial review and to seme extent mitigated by increased pension contributions from
employees and employer in line with the maximum recommended from actuarial assumplicns and by an
agreed recovery plan with the Cumbria Pension Scheme.

On 1% August 2020 the college TUPE'd cleaning staff into a newly formed college subsidiary a key driver for
this approach 1o these out-sourcing arrangements being management of pension costs, lodowed by Catering
staff on 1% July 2021. The subsidiary company provides a vehicle o offer further opportunities to mitigate

pensicn liability risks.
The Teachers’ Pension Scheme is an unfunded scharme and as such the Eability for that schem is not repaned

on the balance sheet Significant increases in Teachers Pension Scheme employer contridulion rales ane 1o
date supported by pension grant funding. Further increases are not assured to receive grant funding support,

8. Safeguarding and Prevent

The Board has a statutory duty to ensure (he safeguarding of students. The Board has several statulony
responsibilities in respect of keaping learners safe in co-operation with partner organisations and to give due
regarding to the need to prevent people from being drawn into errorism.

The College has put in place certain safeguards in recognition of this and included the matter on its risk register
5o that it can be monitored regularly by the Corporation. Risks associated with these dubies are being mibgated

by

s« giving requtar briefings 1o Governors and staff,
« regular reviewing and updating College policy and procedures to reflect latest good practice;

STRATEGIC REFPORT (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

» inbernal communication and promation plan,



kraming for Governors and staff,

training for student representatives

including Safeguarding and Prevent in the tutorial programme for students;
online monitoring activity.

10. Cyber Attack

In 2017, the College suffered a major Cyber-attack Cyber-attacks are significant and an-going and represent
a significant risk 1o business continuity. We remain vigilant and mitigate this risk by:

increasing resources focussed on digital capability and security,
staff training and awarenass raising;

enhanced insurance cover,

third party testing of security:

Seacuring and maintaining the Cyber Essentials Flus award.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIOMNSHIPS

The College understands the importance of collaboration and parinership working and actively works with
many stakeholders, including:

shudents,

parents and guardians;

staff and representative bodies;

the FE Commissioner,

Local Enterprise Parinership (LEP), Chamber of Commence and Local Authorites;

partners in the Mational College for Nuclear = Sellafietd Ltd, University of Cumbria, Bridgewater and

Taunton Coliege, EDF Energy Lid and University of Bristol,

= |ocal employers, in particular Sellafield Ltd and the wider nuclear supply sector, MHS Trusis and
Cumbedand County Council;

» Cumbria FE Inglitutions, Lancaster and Morecambe College, Secondary Western Heads, primary
schools;

= |nspira;

+  (Open University, Unsversity of Cumbria and UCLAN;

v professional bodies

CARBON REPORTIMNG

The intensity measurement recommended for the sector is total gross emissions in metnc loanes CO2e par
staff mamber. The intensity measurement for Lakes College in 2022723 is 1.6 lonnes CO2e per member of
stalf (2021722 2.2 tonnes).

Measures taken io improve enargy efficiancy:

* We have replaced the boilers in the main college building with mare enargy efficient ones and
continue to upgrade lighting across college with LED lighting on & rofling basis,

» Established a sustainability group o support the mowe s net 2eno;

s Drafted a decarbonization plan o inform carbon reduce developmants and imvesiments;

+ Mixed recycling bings are in place and inbegrated across all classrooms, large offices and the LRC.
Fromotion of recycling across college confinues;

= Secured environmental management system (50 14001 accreditation in 2022.



STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Equal opportunities and employment of disabled persons

Lakes College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who leam and work here. We respect
and value positive differences in race, faith, gender, sexual orientation, gender reassignmant, pregnancy and
maternity, sbility, class and age. We strive vigorously to remove conditions which place people at a
disadvantage and we actively combat bigetry by the college community

The College's Singbe Equality Policy is monitored on an on-going basis and published on the College’s inbernet
site and the College publishes an Annual Equality report. Equality impact assessments are underiaken on
policies and procedures.

DISABILITY STATEMENT

The College considers all applications for employment from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aplitudes
of the individuals concermed. The College is a 'Positive about Disabled' employer and has commitled to the
principles and objectives of the standard. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made
io ensure that employment with the College continues. The College’s policy is to provide traning, career
development and opportunities for promotion, which are, as far as possible, identical to those for other
employeas. The College has secured the TUC Health and Wall-being standard, at bronze, demonstrating our
commibmant to the health and well-being of our staff.

The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010.

a8 As parl of ils accommodation strategy the College annually monitors and responds, as appropriate, o
access requirements. Experts in this field conducted a full access audit in June 2007 and the results of
this formed the basis of capital funding projects aimed at improving access. Access assessments and
work continue &s we improve our cCampus.

b. The College provides information, advice, and arranges support where necessary for students and staff
with disabilities. Students are supported in their fransition to Coliege.

¢. Specialist equipment is avallable for use by students and a range of assistive technology is available in
the learning centre. This has been wall received and is well utilised.

d. The admissions policy for all students ensures no students are discriminated against. Appeals against a
decision not to offer & place ane dealt with under the complaints policy.

e. The Coliege has made a significant investment in the appointment of specialist lecturers to support
students with learning difficullies andlor disability. There are a number of student support assistants
including specialists who can provide a varisty of leaming. There is a conlinuing programme of staff
development to ensure the provision of an appropriate specialist support for students who have leaming
difficulties andior disabilities.

f  The College actively works in partnership with crganisations and groups in West Cumbria and beyond to
help develop accass to learning.

g. Specialist programmes are deseribed in College prospectuses, and achievenent and destinalions are
recorded and published in the standard Collega format. Review of achievement gaps feature in the self-
assessmant and conlinuous Improvemsant process.

h.  Counselling and welfare services are available for all students,

i. Equality, disability and impact measure targets are set and monitored across the curmiculum with review
at corporation level.
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STRATEGIC REPORT [continued)
Gender Pay Gap

As at March 2024

As at March 2023

Category
Median Gender Pay Gap

18.7% in favour of men

20% in favour of men

Mean Gender Pay Gap | 10.2% in favour of men

6% in favour of men

The % proportion of man and women in each pay quartibe (movement+/-%) is a3 follows:

Quartile % Women_ % Men
Lower T1% (T5%) 29% (25%]
 Lower Middle B4% (67%) 36% (33%)

Upper Middle 4T% (55%) 53% (45%)

Upper 45% (55%) 51% [44%)

The Gender pay Gap has reduced as pay rates at the lower end of the pay scale have increased sbove the
average, we have more females in the lower pay bands, We continue o work lowards reducing the gender

pary gap.
Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirement) Regulations 2017 require the College to publish
information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the Collage, comparative in brackets.

MWumber of Employees over relevant Perlod FTE Employee Numbers
o) 0 0y
Percentage of Time Numbar of Employees
0% 07}
1-50% o0)
51-09% ()
100% «{=)
| Tv:rl.‘:r111':llt4:|-'fl’ul‘l:Ilt_||_I time (HED)
Total Pay Bill N £11,018,090 (£10,538,131 )
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time e(0%)
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a % of 0905}
tolal pald facility time

Dizclogure of iInformation to auditors

The members who hedd office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, 5o far as they are each aware,
there is no refevant audit information of which the Caollege’s auditors are unavware; and each member has taken
all thie steps that they ought o have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that

the College’s auditors are aware of that information.
Approved by order of the members of the Corparation on 5th December 2024 and signed on its behalfl by:

Mige! Halliday 'r\{ > H%

Char
Sih December 2024

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College to
abtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period from 1#
August 2023 to 319 July 2024 and up io the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.



The College endeavours to conduct its business:

|, in accordance with the saven principles identified by the Commitiee on Standards in Public Life
{selflessness; integrity; objectivity; accountability; coenness; honesty and leadership);
. in accordance with the guidance to Caolleges, in the Association of Colieges "Code of Good

Governance for English Colleges™.

The Govemning Body recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, It has a particular
duty to obsarve the highest standards of corporate governance at all times. The Board first adopted the (AoC)
Code of Good Governance for English Colleges on 16 July 2015, adopting a subsequent version on 30"
September 2021, The Govemning Body has continued fo use this code in 2023-24. In the opinion of the
Govaring Body, the College has sought to comply with the Code as validated by the External review of
Governance which ook place from February- May 2023. On 21 March 2024, the Board adopted the revised
(AnC) Code of Governance 2024 for implemantation from 1% August 2024,

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The Governors, who
are charity trustees, confirm that they have had due regard for the Charity Commission's guidance on public
benefit, and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of education, and that the
required statements appear elsewhere in these financial staterments.

The Corporation

Members of the Corporation, who served on the Corporation during the y&ar and up fo the date of signature
of this report are listed at pages 54-55. This table also includes commitiee membership and attendance

racords.

It is the Corporation’s respansibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance,
resourcas and standards of conduct.

The Corperation is provided with regular and timely informabon on the overall financial performance of the
college together with other information such as performance against targets, proposed capilal expenditure,
guality matters and personnel-related matters such as health and safety and environmental issues. The
Corporation meets (at least) elight imes a year. Formal agendas, papers and reporls are supplied to Governors
in a timaly manner prior to board meetings. Briefings are provided on an ad hoc basis.

All governors are able to take independent professional advice in furthesance of their duties at the College’s
expanse and have access (o the Clerk fo the Corporation, who is responsibie o the Board for ensuring that all
applicable procedures and reguiations are complied with. The appoiniment, evaluation and removal of the
Clerk are matters for the Corporafion as a whole.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominales
its decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of s non-executive members is
indepandant of management and free from any business or other relationship, which could matenally interfera
with the exercise of their independent judgement Thare is clear division of responsibility in that the roles of

the Chair and Accounting Officer are separate,
The Clerk to the Corporation maintaing a regester of financial and personal interests of the governors. The

register is avaiable for inspection at the address below. Governors hawve signed up to the Eversheds
{professional advisors) Code of Conduct and have approved a conflict of inteves! policy.

The standing orders of the Corporation, which sets out terms of reference, schemes of delegation and rules
for the conduct of business, are published on the website, as are the Annual Report and Financial Statements
of the Corparation for the previous sbx years, and the complaints and whistle-blowing palicies, which are kept

under reguiar fviw
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERMAL CONTROL (CONTD)

The Corporation = supported by a number of advisory working groups and commitiees. Each has a terms of
reference, which have been approved by the Corporation, These are the Finance and Corporate YWorking
Group; the Quality Working Group; the S=arch and Governance Committes; the Audit Committes and tha
Remuneration Committee. More recently, the Corporation has approved a more informal man#oging group of
governors (Financial Recovery Group) focusing on financial haalth between scheduled mestings.

The Corporation monitors the risk register on at least a termly basis (see Principal Risk and Uncertainties) and
the Audit Committee is responsible for an annual review of the register, The risk register and managemant
processas have been audiled in the past two years and received substantial assurance. However, sk
management confinues to be kept under review to ensure that processes are as robust as possible. A Funher
Education Self-Assessment report and a Higher Education Self-assessment report, which considers
performance in-depth, is approved by the Corporabion on an annual basis and improvement plans are
monitored in-year.

The Corporation reviews financial regulations on an annual basls, which, logether with approved policies in
respect of bribery, anti-corruption, gifts and hospitality and fraud, are audited on an annual basis through ha
regularity audif,

Thie Corporation approves an annual intennal audit plan (on the recommandation of the Audit Commiltes),
informed by the risk register, siralegic and operational development and the agresd audit sirategy, with the
Audit Committee providing robust scrutiny of the ensuing reports.

The Audit Committee receives an Annual Report from the Intermal Auditor, which is taken into consideration
whan farming s own recommendations 1o the Corparation discussed in mare detad under the ‘internal contral®
heading of this statemeant balow.

Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation under standing ordar
47, ara available on the College's weabsile or from the Clerk o the Corporation at:

Lakes College West Cumbria, Hallwood Road, Lillyhall Business Park, Workingfon, CA14 40N

Freedom of Information requests may be addressad (o the Depuly Principal af the address above, under the
Access to Informabton Policy, which is afso published on the website.

Thisre wene no expenses pasd to Govemnors in 2023-24,
Appointments to the Corporation

Any mew appointmeants to the Corporabion are a matter for the consideration of the Corporafion as a whale
The Corporation has a Search Committes, consisting of frve members of the Corporation, which is responsible
for the selection and nomination of any new member for the Corporation’s consideration, The Corporation is
responsible for enguring that appropeiate fraining is provided as required, Members of the Corporation ane
appainted for a term of office not exceeding four years, New appointments are made for 1 year in the fircst
instance followed by a 3-year term of office by mutual agreament.

Corporation Performance

The College has camied out a self-agsessment process in 2023-24 basad on performance. This has baen
brought to the Cerporation for Board consideralion, The Board has agreed a recommeandation that thens will
not be a formal grading applied, but that sirengths and areas for improvemeant willl be well documenied and
manitored. [t is noded fior the record that Ofsted grading in 2024 i Good.

The Board has carried out a seif-assessment of Board performance for the year endad 31July 2024 and has
decumantad strengths and areas for Improvement using the AoC recommended template, which forms the
basis for their owm action plan in 2024-25 which is agreed by the Board and monilored by the Search and
Governance Committes. The self-assessment has bean sharad with the FE Comméssioner team.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNAMNCE AND INTERMAL CONTROL {CONTD)

The Board continues o place reliance on their axtennal review of Governance, cafriad ocut from February 2023~
May 2023 by Shifkey Collier MBE, a formar National Leader of Governance wilh the FE Commissioners office
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and experienced board reviewer, whose approach is aligned with the Chartered Governance institute of the
UK and Irefand, which concluded that

*.....governance is well managed and has a beneficial impact on Lakes College. In terms of nsk oversight and
management, the Board provides the college with one of its lines of defence. The current appreach should
give assurance to stakeholders that the college s managing its assels prudently and putting the student
expanance at the heart of its deliberations.”

A summary of her findings and an action plan can be found on the College’s website.

The Goveming Body demonstrates a commitment to sedf-development with Governors undertaking some form
of fraining throughout the year, This has included induction, safeguarding and prevent. finance training,
sirategic sessions; and networking events. The Audit Commitiee has undertaken role-specific risk training
within the past 18 months. The Chair has participated in AoC regional chairs” sessions. All Governors continue
tor be asked to undertake the ETF foundation onling training.

The Clerk, who holds an ICSA Cerificate (lavel 5) in FE Governance, also participated in regional AoC
conferences, where current issues are discussed and shared, This has incleded in the fecent fwo years a
number of DFEfACC-led webinars (and self-development) in respect of the raclassification of FE Colleges as
public sector and the implications thereof

Under the Code of Good Governance for English Colleges, adopted by the Corporation, there is a requirement
to comply or explain performance and this section provides an overview of performance far the past year,

With respect o the external review of governance and the most recent Ofsted report (2024), Govemnance
confinues to be fAvowrably recened

*Governors provide strong support and challenge to keaders and clearly understand and suppor the college's
sirategic plan. They clearly articulate changes to the curricudum in recent years and their roles in the rationale
for these changes; for example, the benefits of a diverse apprenticeship offer for young people from
disadvantaged areas that the college serves, where full-time education may not be viable financially.” Ofsted

2024,

The Board has continued to act decisively, with honesty and integrity, to challenges it has faced in-year
{documented elsewhere in respect of financial support) and has shown a willingness to reflect and review

prachice moving forwand,

Governors have a good understanding of the College, its place in the community and are responsive io national
and local policy initiatives, as demonstraled by a willingness to engage in

# the Mational College for Muclear, of which it is one of two founding members,
» bowork with the Chamber of Commerce in delivering the local skills agenda, in collaboration with other
skills providers;

o T-Lewvel provision;

« A governor-led review of how the College meels local need
The Corporation keeps all key policies and procedures under regular review and receives the minules of all of
its supporting committeas and working groups. The Corporation also monitors complaints and compliments,
the surveys of key stakeholders, including students. their parents and employers. In addition, & regularly
receives updates in respect of strategy, curniculum and finance, national and local policy develepmants, and
reviews KPls at each meeting, Performance in respect of Safeguarding and Prevent, Health and Safety,
Equadity and Diversity are reported annually a8 a minimum.

Minutes of the Corporation demonstrate the breadth of monitoring and challenge undertaken by the Governing
Body; Governors bring a very sirong skills set to the work of the Corporation, with expertise in all requisite
areas and high expectations of senior staff,
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTD)

In 2023724, Governors have achieved an overall atendance rate of 82% (2023-23; 82%), above farget of 0%
and in line with the sector average. The Board continues to consider the diversity of its membership; in 2023724,
gender balance stood for the majority of the year at 56% female and 44% male.

A key challenge for the College is that it sits in a large, rural, sparsaly populated area (pop 163,200), with a
dominance of one particular secior - nuclear engineering — which altracls a large transient workforce. Add to
which, ag confirmed by the latest Census of 2021, the White/British' profile of the area is in the 87 percantile.
Bath have an impact on the diversity of potential candidates, bearing in mind the predominantly white
poputation, a commaonality of slilis, experence and cutiook of those employed by the nuchear sector and the
challenges of a sparsely populated area.

Given this situation, and a board mambaership of 18 which affords sorme Rexibility, Governors feel that, provided
the Board is subject to regular refresh, they resarve the nght to re-appoint for longer than best practice advice,
whera there is a damonstrable need andior a need for continuity, in recognition of the limitations of the local
area. Three new independent members joined the Board in 2023-24 with three further governors due b join in
2024-25, assisted by a recruitment agency working with the DFE. In filling s vacancies, the Search and
Governance Committee (and the Board) has due regard to the ovarall skills mi of the Baard.

The Board will continue o consider matiers of equality and diversity in thair appointment process, bul their
appainiment will be on the basis of the skiks needs of the Board at the time of vacancies.

Committees
Quality Working Group

The Quality Improvement Working Group comprised five members in 2023-24 and operates in accordance
with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation. They had three formal meetings in 2023-24,
focusing on improvement plans,

Search and Governance Committes

The Search and Gowernance Committee compeised five members of the Corporation in 2023024, The
Committes operates In accordance with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation. The
Committee met 3 times in 2023-24. Generally, the Committee provides a forum for reporting governance
developments, fo discuss govemnor vacancies and appointments and to carry oul an annual review of
Gowarnance arrangarmants. In has been approved that this committee will provide a focus for an ‘independent
view' of governance, akin to the role discussed in the Higher Education Code of Good Governance.

Remuneration and the Remuneration Committee

The Corporation has adopted the AoC Remuneration Code and the way In which the salaries of sanior
posthodders, which includes the Accounting Cficer, are set s cutlined in a statement available on the web site.

Salanes have traditionally been set using banchmark material from the Association of CoBeges at a scale
which took account of performance and was reviewed by the Remuneration Commiltes on an annual basis, It
is noted for the record that effective from 1 August 2014, that all Senior Postholders, and the Clerk, voluntesred
to recaive the sama pay rise as all stalf (usually aligned to the Aol pay award recommendation).

Faollowing & review of salaries by an external consuitant in 2022-23, it was resolved that sanior staff will receve
the same uplift as staff wntl the next such independent review in a further 6 years (unkess the Remuneration
Committee feel that they should recommend an eader review based an ther manitoring of the AcC
benchmarking material). Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2024 are set out in note B to the
financial Staterments, noting that the pay ratwo of the Principal to the stafl median stands af 1.3.82.

In 2023-24. there were four members of the Remunaration Commitiee. The Commitiea meats at leasi annually
to take an overview of performance and the terms and conditions of the Senior Postholders and the Clerk,
Performance reviews of the Principal and the Glerk are carried out at keas! annually and reponed to the Boand.



STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERMAL CONTROL (CONTD)

Finance and Corporate Working Group

The Finance and Corporate Waorking Group comprised 5§ members in 2023-24 and operates in accondance
with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation. The Working Group met on four occasions in
2023-24, ang of which considered the self-assessment of some business support units, The working group
has been set up o monitor growth plans, business development and efficiency and effectivenass as an
advizory group to the Corporation, and has also considered the Learner Journey incheding the Carears

Strategy. In 2024-25, the caresrs responsibility will move (o a Link Governor,

Financial Recovery Group

A less formal group (nonetheless approved by the corporation) has been established as a sub-sel of the
Finance and Corporate working group, incodporating additional financial expertise, to provide batwesn-
meeting monitaring of financial performance. This meets al least termly where no other meeting of the Board
or Finance and Carporate Working Group s scheduled. This group has no decision-making powers.

Audit Commities

The Audit Committee comprised six members of the Corpoaration (excluding the Principal and the Chair of
Corporation) in 2023-24. The Committes operates in accondance with writben terms of reference in line with
the Post 16 Audit Code practice and approved by the Corporation. The membership comprised four
independent, one staff and 2 co-opted member. With Corporation's approval, the Audit Committee did
préviously take the decision to retain a staff Governor on the committee, valuing the insight they bring to
discussions {noting that any conflict of interest would be declared and, where appropriate, the staff govemmar
would withdraw). In 2024-25 this will change given diferences to the skills” set of the membership (which now
includes a former member of s1aff) and the staff governor will be deployed on another Commities,

The Audit Committee mat five times in 2023-24 with attendance of 80% al one meeating; 83% af threa meetings
and 57% at one meeting. Attendance was as follows:

Mr Robert Miburn {Chair) 2 of 5 meetings attendad
Ms Elaing Clinton § of & meatings attended
Ms Denise Rollo 4 of 5 meetings attended
Mrs Morma Boyes {co-opted) 5 of 5 meelings attended
Mr Lee Todd 3 of 5 meetings attended
Mz Valerie Pallister 4 of 4 meetings attended (joined November 2023)

The Audit Committes meets on at least a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the College’s
internad, regularity and financial statements auditors, who have access to the Committes for mdependent
discussion without the presence of College management. The Committae also receives and considers reports
from the main funding bodies as they affect the Coflege’s business.

The College’s internal auditors monitor the systems of inlemnal control, risk management controls and
governance processes in accordance with the agreed audit plan and report their findings to management and
the Audid Committesa.

Management s responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal audit
underiakes periodic follow up reviews to ensure such recommendalions have been implamented. Infarnal
Audit was able to confirm that 100 % of all recommendations had been implementad in 2023-24.

Tha Audit Committes recommends the annual audit plan to the Corporation, authors an annual report to the
Corporation on audit work, and scrutinises and recommends the financial statements to the Corporation Board.

The Commities also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal, regularity and financial statements
puditors and their remuneration for bath audit and non-audit work and keeps key policies and procedures
under review, such as the risk and whistie-blowing policies, fraud and bribery and anti-corruption and financial

regulations.



STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTD)
Internal Control
The purpose of the system of infernal confrol

The system of internal control is based on an engoing process designed lo identify and priortise the risks to
the achievemant of College poficies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
reaksed and the impact should they be realised. and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
Thie system of inlernal control has been in place at Lakes College for the year ended 31 July 2024 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and accounts

Scope of responsibility

The Corporation is ultimataly responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
affectivensss. However, such a system Is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute agsurance against mateial
risstatement or logs

The Corporaticn has delegated to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, the day-to-day responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievemant of tha College's policies, aims
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which they are personally responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to them in the Funding Agresment between Lakes College West
Cumbria and the funding bodies, The Principal is also responsible for reporting to the Corporation any material
weaknesses or breakdown in internal cantral.

The risk framewerk supports the achievement of the College’s policies, aims and objectves; business,
operational and compliance risks ane covered in addition to financial nsks.

Capacily to handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposad together with the operating.
financial and complance controls thal have been implemented fo mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of
the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evalualing and managing the College’s
significant risks which has been in place for the year ending 31 July 2024 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation.

The nsk and control ramaework

The system of internal control i based on a framework of reguiar managemeant information, al:ll'nlrl!.l.trall".rg
procadures inchuding the segregation of duties, and a systern of delegation and accountabésty, In particular, it
includes:

« comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budgel which is reviewed and agreed by the
Governing body;

» regular reviews by the Governing body of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial
performance against forecasts;

# salting targets to measura financial and other perfarmance; including achevement rales,

= regular review of the risk register, with mitigating actions. according 1o a risk appetite approved by the
Audit Committes;

» regular review of the Audit Committee minutes by the Corporation, and consideration of the Annual Report

of the Audit Committee giving its opinion of the system of internal control following review,

setting tangets (o measura financial, busingss and other perlormance, iNcluding sUCcess rates,

regular review of the financial regulations, which $ets oul capital investment conbrol guidedines;

clearly defined capital investmant canirol gusdelings,

the adoption of formal project management disciplings, where aporopriate.

@ & & &

Lakes College has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the
Education and Skils Funding Agency's Post 16 Auait Code of Praclice. The work of the internal audi service
I3 infcrmed by an analysis of the risks to which the College is exposed, and annual intarmal audd pians are
shaped by this analysis.
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTD)

The analysis of risks and the internal audit plans are approved by the Corporation an the recommendation of
the Awdit Committea, At minimum, annually, the Head of Internal Audit provides the goveming body with a
repert on Internal sudit activity in the College. The report includes the College’s system of risk management,
cantrols and governance procasses.

Risks faced by the Corparation

The Carporation identifies the risks (and opportunities) that it faces by keeping up-io-date with developments
in national policy and local policy and funding developments; by strong stakeholder engagement providing a
good knowledge of the local market and its fluctuations; through menitoring of inancial and eurrcylum
performance, being able to identify areas of concern (or growth) to maintain overall performance and salisfy
demand. It knows the business well and can identify risks to its strategic objectives from a position of
knowladge.

Having identified an individual risk, it is rag rated according to an approved risk malrix (and on the basis of risk
appetite). It is then analysed using the Bow-Tie method of risk analysis, which considers, on the one hand, the
causes and prevantative measuras and, on the other hand, the consequences and mitigating controls. This
method of risk analysis onginates in high-risk environments and was introduced to the Corporation by a
Governor in the nuchear industry, This form of risk register allows for the identification of a diverse range of
risks and not just financial risks.

The risk register is considared by the Corporation on a termly basis and reviewed by the Audit Commitiee on
an annual basis. In 2023-24. The Audit Committes has considered 1-2 rigks In more detail at each of Bs

meatings.

The risk register is reflected in the Internal audit plan and the overall process is embedded 1 the annual Cyche
af business,

Conlrod Weaknesses ideniiffed

*Ag detaled in last year's financial staternents, the deficit in 2022-23 was greater than forecasl The
Corporation did take swift action in pursult of financial recovery coupled with robust monitoning, however, an
unexpected clawback in funding necessitated the reguiremant for a loan from the DfE and the subseguent
intervention by the Further Education Commissioner, with whom the Board is working closely. The Coflege
has now secured 8 major contract and it is forecast that the College will return 1o good financial heaith (self-
moderated from an automatic outstanding grading) in the coming year (noting that to date, the Coliege has not
required to use the lean),

Of three high level audit recommendations, two of which were focused on apprenticeships, these are being
addressed by a robust action plan, with progress closely monitored by the Audit Commitiee and there &

confidence that progress is being made.

An OIS data audi (for clarity this was not an audit of the ILR) has equally led to a robust action plan being put
in place following recommendations from the OFS auditor, with an aclion plan being manitored at audi

comrmities

There have been no instances of fraud. Other scrutiny of internal controls, through a ngorous audit process,
has not found any other significant contrel weaknesses or failuras other than thase reported abave.

Responsibiies under Funding Agreements

The Depariment of Education, and the Education and Skills Funding Agency, introduced new contrals for the
College on 29" Movember 2022 on the day that the Office for National Statistics reclassified colleges as public
sactor organisations in the national accounts. The ESFA chief meécutive communicated thesa changes to all
college accounting officers and a college financial handbook was infroduced in 2024. The Collage has
reviewed its policies, procedures and approval processes in line with these new requirements to identify and
handle any transactions for which DfE approval is required.



STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTD)

Eratement from e Avdif Commiiies

In its annual report, the Audit Committee has provided assurance to the Corporation in the following
statement

“Heving considered reporis by the College’s Infemal and Financial Statements Auditors, and mong
recantly the action plan to recover financial health from requires improvement o good, as far as the
information tabled to the Committes can allow a judgment to be reached, the Ausdit Committes is of
the opinion that the College’s systems have bean managed to a reasonable standard,

The College has consistently had a good track recond in the implamentation of audit recommendations.
This keads the Committes o form the opinian that the Cosporation can rely upon the adequacy and
eflectiveness of the College's intemal control systems, subject to the implementation of the
recommendatons referred to in the action plan and within the various reports.”

The specific areas of work undertaken by the Audit Committes in 202324 and up 1o the date of the approval
of thi fimancial statements are:

Internal Audit Opinions 2023724

Ref  Audit Title Owverall Assurance

1, Apprariliceshps Strategy and Delvary Model Reasarable

2. Equality and Oiversity Reasonable
HR Performance Development Managemaent and sasonabile

2. Succession Planning g

" ESFA Mock Funding Audit Reasorable

5. Complinnce wilh Audil Recommandations Suibstantial

E. Apprenticeship Delvery Model Compliance Reasanable

7 intemal Audil: Anmual Repord 2023-24 Rieasonabls

Oiher Audits

OFS review of aspects of highar

. education student data 2022-23, Ho assuwanca offered
Exiernal Audit 2033524 Mo issues arising
Regularity Audit 2023524 Nal i

Raview of elfacianefs

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of inlernal
control, His review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control ks informead by:

« the work of the internal auditors;

= the work of the executive managers within the CoBiage who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framewark;

« comments made by the College's financial statemants auditors, the reparting accountant for regularity
assurance, the appointed funding audstors (for coleges subject to funding audit) in their management
letters and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of their review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal contral by the Audit Committes, which overseas the work af the internal awditor and
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other sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous imgrovernent of the
gystem is in place.

The senlor management te&am receive reports satting out key performance and risk indicators and considers
posaible control issees brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, which are embedded within
the dapariments and reinforced by risk awareness training. The semior management team and the Auwdit
Committee also receive reguiar reports from internal audit, which include recommendations for improverment.

The Audit Committee’s role in this area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for internal
contred, The Corporation’s agenda includas a regular item for consigeration of risk and control and receives
reports thereon from the senicr managemant tearm and the Audit Committes, The emphasis is on obiaining
the redevant degree of assurance and not menely reporling by exceplion. At its December 2024 meating, the
Corporation carried out an annual assessment for the year ended 31 July 2024 by considering documentation
from the senior management team and the internal audit and taking account of events since 31 July 2024,

Bazed on the advica from the Audit Committes in its statement, and advice fram the Accounting Officer, the
Corporation i of the opinion that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk
management and control, and has fulfilad its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficient use of
resources, the solvency of the institution, and the safeguarding of their assets”.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on Sth Dacembar 2024 and signed on B3 behalf by:

i I—
NETIS TN Vi

Nigel Holliday Chris MNattrass
Chair PrincipaliAccouniing Officer
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE:

As Accounting Officer | confirm that the Coorporation has had due regard to the framework of authorities
governing regularity, priority and compliance, and the requirements of the College’s accountability agreement.
funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA, the DFE and the OfS’ tarms and conditions of funding and
has considered its responsibility to notify the ESFA and OfS of matarial inregularily, impropriety and noon-
complianca with those authorites and berms and condilions of funding.

I confirm on behalf of the Corporation that after due enguiry, and to the best of my knowledge, | am able to
identify any material, regular or improper usa of funds by the corporation, or malerial non-compliance with
the terms and conditions of funding, under the corporation’s accountability agreamant, funding agresmanis
and contracts with the ESFA, DfE and the ongaoing condifions of registration and terms and condifions of
funding of the OFS, or any other public funder. This includes the elements cutlingd in the ‘Dear Accounting
Officer’ latber of 29 November 2022 and ESFA's bite-size guides.

| confirm that no instances of malerial imegularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have bean
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified 1o the
Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Office for Students as appropriate.

il
Chris‘Natiress
Principalfdccounting Officar

Statement of the Chair of Govermnors

On behalf of the Corporation, | confinm that the Accounting Officer has discussed their siatemant of
reguiarity, propriety and compliance with the board and that | am content that i is materially acturale,

NS OHS »

Nige| Holliday
Chair

&th Decarnber 2024
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATION

The members of the Corporation are required to presant audited financlal statements for each financial
B,

Within the terms and conditions of the College’s accountability agreement, funding agreements and
contracts with the ESFA, DfE, OFfS and any other funding organisation, the Corporation is required to
prepare financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of
the Corporation for the relevant period. Corporations must also prepare a strategic report which includes
an operating and financial review for the year. The bases for the preparation of the financial statements
and strategic report are the Statement of Recormmended Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher
Education, ESFA's College Accounts Direction and the UK's Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

In preparing the financial statements the Corporation is required t

» select suitable accounting palicies and apply them consistently;

» make judgernenis and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any rmaterial
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

# assess whether the corporation is a going concern, noting the key supporting assumptions,
qualifications or mitigating actions, as appropriate (which must be consisient with other disclosures
in the accounts and auditor's report); and

» prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it ks Inappropeiate to assume that

the College will continue in operation,

The Corporation is also required to peepare a Strategic Report, in accordance with paragraphs 3.23 and
3.27 of the FE and HE SORP, that describes what it is trying to do and and how R is going about i,
including information about the legal and administrative status of the College.

The Coeporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy, al any tima, the financial posiion of the Collega, and which anable i lo ensure that the financial
staternents are prépared in accordance with relevant legislation inciuding the Further and Highar
Education Act 1992 and Charities Act 2011 and other refevant accounting standards. It is responsible for
taking steps that are reasonably apen to it o safeguard its assets, and to prevent and detect fraud and

piher irregularifies,

The Corporation is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the College website; the work carried
out by the auditors does not invohve consideration of these matiers and, accordingly, the auditors accept
no responsibility for any changes that may have eccurred to the financial staternents since they were
initially presented cn the website. Legistation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staternents may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that gevern
therm. In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the Education and Skills Funding
Agency, DIE and OfS are used only in accordance with the accountability agreement, funding agreements
and contracts and any other conditions that may be prescribad from time to time by the EFSA, OfS ar any
other public funder, including that any transachons enteéred into by the Corporation are within the
delegated authorities set out in the "Dear Accounting Officer” letter of 28 November 2022 and ESFA's bite
sizé guides. Members of the Corporation musi ensure that there are appropriate financial and
management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds and ensure they are used properly. In
addition, members of the Corporation are responsible for securing economical, efficient and effective
managament of the College’s resources and expenditure, 5o that the benefits that should be derved from
the application of public funds from the Education and Skills Funding Agency and other public bodies are

not put at risk,
Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 5th December 2024 and signed on its behalf
by

Migel Halliday i oo

Chair



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE

We have audited the group financial statements of Lakes College for the year ended 31 July 2023 which
comprise the Consolidated and College Statement of financial activities incorporating income and
expenditure account, the Consolidated and College Balance shee!, the Consolidated and Colliege
Statement of cash Aows and the related noles, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
Thie financial repodting framewark that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), incleding
FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicabla in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Further
Education SORF 2018 and the College Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and

Skills Funding Agancy.

This raport is made solely ta the Corporation, as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
meght state to the Corporation, as a body, those matters we are required to state to them in an Audilors
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept o assume
respansibility to anyone other than the Corporation, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinicns we have formed.

Im cur apinion the financial statemants:

= give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the
state of the Group and Collega's affairs as at 31 July 2024 and of the Group and College's deficit
of income over expenditure for the year then ended; and

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

+ have been preparad in accordance with the requirements of the Further Education SORP 2015
and tha College Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding

Agency.
BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internabional Standards on Auditing (LK) (I1SAs (UK])) and
applicable law. Our responsibiities under those standards are further described im the Audfiors
responsibilities for the audil of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
coliege in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that the
audit avidence we have cblained |s sufficien! and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Corporation’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial slalerments s appropriate,

Based on the work we have perforrmed, we have nat identified any material uncertainties relating to avenis
or conditions that, Individually or coflectively, may cast significant doubt on the Corparation's ability to
caontinue as a going concern for a8 period of at least twelve months frem when the financial statements are
authonsed for issue.

Our responsibilibes and the responsibiities of the Governars with respect to going concemn are described
in the relevant sections of this report.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE [CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The Governors are respansible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, other than the financial statemenis and our Auditor's report thereon. Our
opinion an the financial statements does not cover the information and, except to the extent otharwise
explicitly stated in our repert, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion theraon.

In connection with owr audit of the financial statemants, cur resgonsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing 8o, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwiss appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatemeants, we are required to determine
whelthes there i3 a material misstaternent in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstaternent of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Office for Students” Accounts Direction

In aur opindon, in all material respects

+ [unds from whatever source administered by the college for specific purposes have been properly
applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legisiation;

+ funds provided by the Office for Students, UK Research and Innovation (including Research
England), the Education and Skills Funding Agency and Depariment for Educalion have been
applied in accordance with the refevant terms and conditions; and

= the requirements of the Office for Students’ accounts direction for the relevant year's financial

statermnenis have been met

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the College and their enviranmani
ohtainad in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Corporations

report including the Strategic reporl

Wie have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Post 16 Audit Code
of Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you i, in our

qpimion:
« adeguate accounting records have not been kept; or retums adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us;
= the College financial statemants are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums, of
» all the information and explanations required for the audit were not received, of
the going concarn basis of accounting and disclosure of material uncertainties is appropriate.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Office for Students;
accounts direction requires us to report to you if:

e the College’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in the notes to the accounis, has been materially

rrigstated.
# the College's expanditure on access and participation activities for the financial year has been

materially misstabed,
RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATION

As explained more fully in the statement of responsibidities of the Members of the Corporation, the
Corporation is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view and for such internal conlral as the Corporation members determine is necessary
1o enabile the preparation of financial staterments that are free from material misstatarmant, whether dug

t fraud o errar,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE (CONTINUED)

in preparing the financial staterments, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the college’s ability to
confinue as a going concearn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
gaing concem basis of accounting unless the Corporation either intend to liguidate the college or to ceasa
oparations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Owr objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole are
free from material misstatemnent, whether due to frawd or error, and fo sswe an Auditor's report that
includes our opinéion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantes that an
audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK) will abways detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considened material if, individually o in the aggragate,
they could reasonably be expecied 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
thege financial statements

Irmegulanties, ncluding fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procadures in ine with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstalements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The axtant o which our procedures are capable of detecting irmegulariies,
including fraud i detailed below,

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of imegularities,
imcluding fraud and non-compliance with kews and regulations, was as follows:

= [he responsible individual ensured that the engagement tearm collectively had the appropriate
compelence, capabilites and skills to enlify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations;

» we idenlifed the laws and regulations applicable to the Corporation through discussions with
Governors and other management

= Wi assessad the extant of compliance wilh the laws and regulations kdenkhied abowve throwgh
making enquiries of management;

= jdentifiad laws and regulaticns ware communicated within the audit feam regularly and the team
rermained alert to instances of nan-compliance throughout the audit.

We aosessed the susceptibility of the Corporation's financlal staterments to matlera! misstatemeant,
including obtaining an undersianding of how fraud might occur, by:

= making enquines of management as o where they congidened thene was susceptibility to fraud,
thedr knowiedge of aciual, suspecied and alleged fraud; and

=  gonsiderng the internal contrals in place to miligate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws
and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

» performed analytical procedures 3% 3 risk assessmant ool to identify any unusual or unexpected
relationships; and

= flested ournal entries o identify unuswual ransactions, and

+ tested the operating effectiveness of key controls over purchase cycles on a sample basis; and

» reviewed the application of accounting policias including the application of capitalisation of tangible
agsels, and Hming of recognition of grant income; and

= Considerad during our work on regularity, propriaty and complianca.

In response to the nsk of imegulanties and non-compliance with laws and regulabong, we designed
procedures which included, but were not limited bo;

= agreang knancial statemeant disclosures to underlying suppoding decumantaton; and
= anquiring of management as to aciual and potential litigation and clalms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE [CONTINUED)

A further deseription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibiliies. The description forms

part of cur Auditor's report.

{ooen Cos

Karen Rae FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Armstrong Watson Audit Limited
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors

Carlisla
Diate: ch December 2024



STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Accounting Policies

The following accounting polickes have been applied consistently in dealing with iterns which are considered matenal m
relation (o the financial statements

Basis of Preparation

Thesea financial slatements have been prepared in accondance with the Statement of Recommended Practicea:
Accounting for Further and Higher Educabion 2019 (the 2012 FE HE SORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2022
o 2023 and in accordance with Financlal Reporting Standard 102 — "Tha Financial Reporing Standard applicable in
the United Kingdom and Republic of ireland” (FRS 102). The college is a public benafit entity and has therefore
applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of cerain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgament in applying the College's accounting policies.

Basgis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the histoncal cost comvention as madiied by the use of previous valuations
as derived cost at transition for cartain non-currant assets.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the college and ifs subsidiary, Lakes College Enterprises Lid, controlled
by the group. Conirol is achiewad where the group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the
enfity s0 as io obiain banefits from its activities. Under the penchase method of acosunting, the results of the subsidiary
and associated undertakings acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the consclidated income and
expenditure account from or up to the date on which control of the undertaking passes. Intra-group sales and profits are
eliminated fully on consalidation,

Going Concam

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance are set out
in the Strategic Report There are inherent uncerainties affecting college future funding long term funding rates,
significant qualification reform, The financial position of the College, its cashflow, liquidity and borrowings are described
in the Financial Statements and accompanying nobes.

Two key issues creale uncedainty and risk in considering going concern;

i n ns ighili

Im 201920 the LGPS liabiity moved the College into a negative balance sheei positian, Since then the liability has
decreased, returning the batance sheet into & positive E5.5m in 2021/22 and in 2022723 the actuarial assessmant moved
to & surpius position of £3.7m, this further incraasing m 2023724 1o E4.8m.

Mo additional contributions are required for the McClowd remedy or for additional deficit conlributions. This scheme is a
long-term liability, arising as the college must offer the LGPS to staff who are not elgible as members of the Teachers'
Pension Scheme, and would only crystallise if the coBage were to leave the pension scheme

Furthar mitigating actions to manage the liabdity were taken with the establishment of a fully owned subsidiary company,
Lakes College Enterprises Lid, as a vehicle to mil the generation of additional liabiities where possibie.

The governors have considered the contribution rates and the cashflow available to the college and can meet the

contributions as they are expected to fall dus. Therefane, the LGPS liabsdity is not considered a material risk to the going
concern of the college over the medium term
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STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Future Operations

Government aducation policy and qualification reform indicate that the college is well placed o meet govermment
priorities in regard 1o technical education, skills development and employer engagement.

The college has made a deficit in the year of £0.529m (2023 £2.05m) before the actuarial movement on the pension
scheme, and a deficit of £0.805m (2023, deficit £0.1m) inciuding the pansions movement with asset ceiling applied as

delafled at nate 15.
The college has net current assets off £0.007m) (2023 £0.02m) and positive reserves of £4.4m (2023 £5.4m),

Notwithstanding the above the governors confirm the coliege continues to be a going concern, without the pension assel
the college has assets of £4.4m (2022 £5.4m), the pension Eability is payable by smployer contributions over a long-term
duration and all contributions over the medium term can be met from cash fows.

In addition, within current liabilities thera is £0.98m (2023 £0.9m) of deferred income capital grants which ane not abilites
falling due for payment but instead income yet 1o be released. Removing the deferred income there would be nel current
assals of £0.93m (2023 £0.9m) clearly demonstrating the ability of the coflege to meet its liabilties as they fall due.

In Spring 2024 with a challenging working capital position and substantial in-year T-level funding clawback, the governors
requested a £1.5m Depariment for Education working capital loan o support the College to meet its labifities, with
repayment planned for July 2027 The College received this loan facilities in June 2024, which has bolstered working
capital reserves, particularly as we secured a substantial apprenticeship confract in September 2024, To date the College
has nat utilised this working capital facility. Receipt of the loan facility placed the College into formal intervention with the
FE Commissioner and a Financial Notice o Improve was issued in Seplember 2024, FE Commissioner support s on-
going whist the College undertakes an FE Commissioner led Strategic Options Appraisal (SPA) which will suppart the
College to test its business case and consider alternative business models. The SPA is expecied Lo reach a conclusion
in March 2025 Whilst in this process, the Corporation is committed to robust monitoring of its Financial Recovery Plan
fo ensure that actions are having the impact necessary 1o support future aspirations.

in July 2024 the College secured a sought after apprenticeship coniract for a period of 28 months. Prevision mobilised
in September 2024 with apprentice recruitmant in Bne with the contract plans. The College had available cash reserves
of £2.3m as at 31 July 2024 Tha level of cash reserves and fiscal planning indicate the college has adequate resources
te continue in operational axistence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going concem

basis in the preparation of its Financial Stalements,

Recognition of Income

Funding body recurrent grants are recognised in ine with best estimates for the period of what is recaivable and depend
on the particular income stream involved. Any under or over achievement for the Adult Skills Budget is adjusted fiar and
reflected in the level of recurrent grant recognised in the income and expenditure account. The final grant income s
normally determined with the conclusion of the year end reconclliation process with the funding body at the end of
Movembser and with any funding audits. 16-19 learner-responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is
therefore nol subject to contract adjustmants, other than for T-Level under-defivery. Where part of a government grant
is deferrad, the defarrad alement is recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due

within one year and craditors due after more than one year as appropriate.

The recurrent grant from Office for Students {OfS) represents the funding allocations atiributable to the current financial
year and is credited direct to the Statemant of Comprehensive Income.

Mon-recurrent grants from the funding bodies or other bodies received in respect of the acquisition or construction af
flwed assets are treated as defemred income and recognised in income over the expected useful iife of the asset under
the accrual method permitied by FRS 102

Incorme from grants, coniracts and olher services rendered Is included to the extent the conditions of the funding have

besn met or the extent of the complation of the contract or service concerned. Income recaived in advance of
performance-related conditions being mel is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and

released fo income as conditions are meat

Income from tuition fees is recognised in the period for which it is receivable and includes all fees payable by students
or their sponsors.
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STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
Al vcoms from short-term deposits i credited to the income and expenditure account in the period In which it is eanned.
Agency Arrangements

The College acls as an agent in the collection and payment of discrationary support related funds and bursaries received
from funding and other bodies, Subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the Staterment of
Comprehensive Income where the College is exposed to minimal rsk or enjoys minimal economic benefit related (o the
transaction. In this case payments received and disbursed would be shown separately, except for the 5% of the gramt
received which is available fo the College 1o cover administration costs relating io the grant. Any funds hedd are within
credilor balances.

Post Retirement Benefits

Fefiremant benefits for most employess of the College are provided by the Teachers' Pension Schemea (TPS) and the
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit schemes which are externally funded from the
slate pension schemea and contractad out of the second stale pengion.

Contributions 1o the TPS are charged to the income and expenditure account 50 as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of
cument and future pensionable payroll The contributions are determined by quakified actuaries on the basis of
quinguennial valuations using a prospective benefit method, The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the College is
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabdities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis.
Tha TPS is tharefone treated as a defined contribution scheme and the contributions recognised as they are paid each
year,

The assets of tha LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities are measured using the projectad unit
method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high guality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency 1o
the liability. The increase in the present value of the liabilities of the schemea axpacted to arise from employes senice in
the perod (s charged 1o the operating surplus as part of staff costs incurred. The expected retum on the scheme's assets
and the increase during the period in the present value of the scheme's abilities, arising from the passage of time, are
inciuded in pension finance costs and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognisad in recognisad gains and lossas.

Short Term Employment Benefils

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (hoSday pay) are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the amployees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued and
measured as the additional amount the College expects 1o pay as a rasult of the unused entittemant

Enhanced Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to formear members of stafl is paid by the Callege annually. An estimale
of the expacted futura cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former members of staff is charged in full to
the Collage's income and expenditure account in the year that the member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge
is made to provigions in the balance sheet using the enhanced pension spreadshaet provided by the funding bodies.

Mon-Current Assets - Tangible Fixed Assats

a. Land and Buildings

Land and buildings inherited from the Local Education Authaority are stated in the balance sheet at valuation on the basis
of depreciated replacement costs at acquisition, which is reated as deamed cost under the transitional provisions of
FRS 102, Land and buildings acquired since incorporabion are included in the balance sheet at cost

Freehold land is not depreciated. Freshold buildings are depreciated over their expected usaful economic Iife to the
institution of 50 years.

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants they are capitaised and depreciated as above. The
relgled grants are credited to a deferred income grant account and are releasad o the income and expenditure account
over the expected usaful aconomic life of the related assel on a basis



STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

consistent with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one year and
those dus after more than one yiar,

Finance costs that are directly attributable to the construction of significant buiddings are not capilalised as part af the
cost of those assets.

On adoption of FRS 102, the Callege followed the transitional provision fo retain the book value of land and buildings as
deemed cost and not o adopt a policy of revaluations of these propartes in the fulure

Assele under congiruction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ cerfificates and other direct costs,
incurred to 31 July 2024, They are not depreciated until they are brought into use. Any associated grants related to

these assels are nof released until the asset is brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is camed out if evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets it is charged to the income and expenditure account
in the pericd It is incurred, unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which case it is capitalised and depreciated on

the refevant basis;

market value of the fixed assel has subsaquently improved;

asast capacily increases,
substantial Improvement in the quality of cutput or reduction in operating costs

significant extension of the assel's life bayond that conferred by repairs and maintenance.

b. Equipment
Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item, unless this forms part of a larger project, is written off o the

income and expenditure account in the peried of acquisition. Lower value mobile |T equipment and associated
peripherals, which may individually cost under £1,000, are capitalised to allow appropriate tracking of use of the assel.
All other equipment |s capitalised at cost. Equipment inherited from the Local Education Authority is included in the

balance sheet at valuation less depraciation.
All egquipment is depreciated on a siraight-line basis, over its useful economic life as follows:

General Equipment: £ yoars

Computer Equipment: 3 (historic) and 5 years
3G Pilch Surface: 10 years

33 Infrastructune: 30 years

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific granis, it is capitalised and depréciated In accordance wih the
above palicy, with the related grant being credited to a deferred grant account and released to the income and
expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related equspment.

Leased Assels

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on & siraight line basis over the lease term.
The College does not have any assets acquired under finance laases.

Investments

Fixed assel investments are carried at historical cost bess any provision for a parmanent diminution in their value.
Curment asset imvestments are included in the belance sheet at the lower of their ariginal cost and net realisable value.

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out In Paragraph 1 Schedule @ Finance Act 2010 and therefore meets
the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is potentially exempt
from taxation in respect of incorme or capital gains received within categories covered by sections 4T8-488 of the
Corporation Taot Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1882, to the extent that such income
or gains are applied exclusively io chariable purposes.
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STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Thee College is partially exempl in respect of Value Added Tax (VAT), so that it can anly recover a minor element of VAT
charged on its inputs, Imecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost of
tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themsalves ane tangible fived assets by nature.

Since April 2017 the Apprenticeship kevy of 0.5% of payrall cosis above £3m ks payable. The College has the night to
use the levy to pay for apprenticeship training for up to 24 months, Where it is considered the levy can be utilised for
apprenticeship training it is classed as pre-paid and released as expenditure when utilised or writhen off after 24 months.
Any 10% top up of the levy from Government funds will be recognised as incomne in line with the release of the

apprenticeship levy expansa.
Liquid Resources

Cash and cash equivalents include sums on short-larm deposits with recognised banks and building societies and
government securities. Al no time during this accounting period did cash reserved dip below 30 days and forecast
Indécake this remains the cash coming for the coming 12 months from the signing of these accounts.

Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benafit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financial stalements, management have made the following judgamants:

s determined whelhes lsases entered into by the College elther as a lessor or lessee are operating or inance
leases. These decsions depend on an assesgment of whather the risks and rewards of ownership have been
trangferred from the lessor to the lessea on a lease by leasa basis,

» debtermined wihather there are indicatars of impairment of the College’s tangible assets. Faclors {aken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial
performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and
exgpected future perormance of that unit

Other Key sources of estimation uncartainty
= Tangibe Fixed assels

Tangible fixed assats are depreciated ovar their useful ives taking inbo account residual values, where approgriabe.
The actual ives of the assels and residual values are assassed annually and may vary depending on a nurmber of
factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are laxen
inls account. Residual value sssesaments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remalining Bfe of the

aasel and the projected dispesal values
Local Governmend! Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on & number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a varety of assumptions. The assumptions used In determining the
net cost {income) for pensions includa the discount rate. Any changes in these assumplions, which ane disclasad in
nobe 18, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermare, a roll forward approach which progecis
results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions Gability at 31 July 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a
full actuarial valuation would mpact on the carmying amount of the pensian liakiliy.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For The Year Ended 31 July 2024

Funding bady grants

Tuition fees and charges
Dither aperating ingoma
Imvastmient incoms

Todal income

Expanditurs
Half costs

Dthef soamnmiing axpanses

Insaves] and ofhar finance costs

Tobal gxpenditure
SurplusiDeficlt) bafore other gains and losdes
(Loss) on disposal assels

Surplus/fDeficit) bafare tax

Tamadion

& urpl s Deficif) in the yoar

Actuarial in raspact of pansion schamaes
Total comprshansve income for the year

Represented by-

Unrestricted comprehanaive income

The income and expenditure account is in respect of continuing activities. There were no operations

that were acquired or discontinued during the year,
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10

1816

38§

14,347

B & B

16,769

11.018
5,058

1.1

(B05]

1437
a8
S84

1,158

225

17,083

11,283

17,677

(434}

LEL ]|

14,538
5,113
1,282

-T)

17050

{2.053)

(2,081)

(2,053}

1884
(58]

L]

12,820

Tz

15,85

10,784
a1re
1204

LT

17,304

(2,050

(2,080

{2.050)

1,584
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CONSOLIDATED AND COLLEGE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
For The Year Ended 31 July 20124

=i income and ~~ J3 PEchSink  Revajuation

| Nedes  axpenditre Account Fund ik Resarve Total

(AT 3™ iy 2023 T PR 3T l'.ﬁ-‘l_l

| Rnbexsn of revaluation reser {3) (231) |

Dredicit from Income and {7 (7o)

axpinditne Bocount

Transiers to designafod resorves. [25) 26 2
I

_AR T July 2034 . tans 4,064 200 M8 4440 |

Callege

AL o 2} a4 s 3T BA |

Redaass of revalustion reserve [Feal] FEL] |

Deficit from income and (&5} (808

gapandiiue account

Transfers (o desigrated resenms i o -

AL 1T Juily 2024 I | i ; 4,042 200 Va8 438

The 33 pitch sink fund has been established, as requined in the grand funding condilions, for replacement of the 3G pach
"earper’.
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BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 JULY 2024

Colege Group College Grouwg
Moles 2024 2024 ol 2023
£ood £aoa £000 £000
Man-cunent aEsats
Tanghble fived assets 10 28045 18,048 2E21 BITE
lrrvesstmaent in joind veniurs i : \ i
Tobal pon-cumant asssts 28,45 28,043 28,371 28378
Currant assats
Debtors 13 1,608 1.560 2,209 2254
Canh at bank and in hand 231 2.364 177 1.784
Total current assels 3830 1524 3,988 4,838
Creditors: amounts falling dus within one yaar 13 13,945) i3.892Z) {3,585 14,013
hed cLTNL BESOLS i iz i | i1

Total sssets less current Eabilities 28,018 0,080 28,394 28,401

Cradiiors emounts faling dus afier mons than ane year 14 [F3423 (422 (2TM) (32734
Defined banafil chligations after provisions 15 3 : 2
Provisions 15 (218) {218) (236 [235)
Total rf asets 4358 4,440 BAm 5441
Rustrictnd regarves
Dasigratsd reserve 17 200 200 78 175
Lhnresbrcted resedvd

ks 17 148 1&6 arr 377
Incafma amd apandiiues scoount 18 4052 1,004 £ 882 4,889
TOTAL FUNDS i 4,440 54 sAH

The financial statements on pages 27 to 55 were approved by the Governing Body on 5th Decemnber 2024 and were

signed on its bahalf by:

1, .
NS Hs N\ =

Migel Holliday Chris Nattress
Chairman Principal
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended 31 July 2024

Cash flew frem cporaling activibes

SurpluslDoficil) on continuing operaticns afier depreciation of assets at
valuation, saceptonal fems and before tax

Depeaciation
Drefesred capital granks bo incom
(raasgiidocraass in dabiars

Incressafdedreas) in cradios and provisions
Pension cost lass contnbotons payable

Ligs on dpodal of fmed aeseds
Interest receiable

Intases! payabis
Mg cash nBowoutlow) from apoavating activibies

Cash flows from investing activitios

Purchase of tangibie fixed assets
Sales of tangible feed assats
Daferred capaal grants recansd

Mot cash inflosa{outfiow) for capitad expenditare and financial ineestmaent

Cash flows from finencing actvities

Redurns an Investmaent and sarvicing of Gnance
invesiment income

Inigens| receties

D focgeny ribcolsbynd in yoleiar

inbarest pad

Mot cash inflow from returns on invesiments and servicing of finance

incraas (Docreass) in cash and cash equivalents in the year
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Coitege  Group
2024 o4
000 fani]
5 (434]
1,190 1,182

(1218  [1.215)
Eav 33
(E72) (579
27T1] @)
rall (21}

B 4
[&73] [247)

Colfege  Group
2024 2024
[ Ey

{1,065 (1,05}

1,001 1,001
{343 (94

College  Group
024 2024
g E0QD

2 21
1,600 1.500
1,821 1.8

College  Group

2024 a4

o] 009
554 1

Codlege  Group
2023 2023
£000 £000

(2053 (2050}
1,282 1,354
(EET) {BET)
(54T} {1.041]

65 124
333 323
{52} =2

(2,2808) (2,289

Colfege  Group
FLFL 2023
far v £dod
ana ENH
357 3837
(178 {176}

College  Group
033 023
£000 £

E2 52
52 52

College  Group
2023 2023
£000 £000

[2,383)  {241%)



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. FUNDING BODY GRANTS

-
& = e
Eiod
ESEA Recurment grant = adult LE & e TES
ESFA Recunment Grant - 16-18: B.483 483 5688 5,668
ESF# Recurrent Grant - Apprenticeships 4,712 4,712 3954 3,554
OF5 Recument Goank 454 dE2 Jed g4
Reloases of gowemment capithl grants 843 B43 557 B5T
Bursary Funds 28 228 248 246
Oithar Funds 652 692 1,336 1,338
14,3197 14,317 14,020 12,920
Z EDUCATION CONTRACTS
o oa a am
000 ey aced fannn
Local Bducation Authority 25 285 198 198
Other Contracts 533 33 518 51§
Ta8 a8 T2 Tz

Education camract insamo sepeesents fee Income recelwed which s not directly from ESFA or OFF. Othes eontracts includag
Multiply ircome of 28,540 which is classified &% & roatriched grant,

3. TUITION FEES AND CHARGES
Colfage Froup Coflege Grots
2024 2034 2023 k|
e £oog £o0g ool
Agult Education Fees 18 218 m2 282
Appranticeship foes and condracts B g1 85 &8
Highar Education - i 20 320
584 584 &7 o7

Tuition fees funded by bursaries Ineluded within the above amounts are tuition fees funded by bursaries of CATS (PR E4TE)
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OTHER OFERATING INCOME

Raleases from non-govemment capital grants {non ESFAIOFS)

Other income genanmting activities
Othar incoems

INVESTMENT INCOME

FR3102 ponsicn nance incoms

Otner interes! recebrable

37
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STAFF CO5TS

hwmﬁﬂmihﬂﬂmmmwmwwhmdmhm.

expressed as full-time aquivalonls, was:

Codlige Group Codlegpe Group
2024 2034 20EY 2023
Numbers  Nombers  Numbers  Mumbers
Restated
Tesching departmants FTE 143 143 142 142
Headcounl 155 155 155 155
Teaching suppor samvises FTE 48 48 41 41
Headoount L1 L) 53 53
Adminlstration and central service: FTE 45 &5 &5 48
Headcount L] 43 a2 52
Pramises FTE E 186 7 18
Haeadeouni T i ] 28
Incomi Gereratian FTE T T L} |
Headecunl 4 ] 5] 10
TOTAL FTE 248 259 244 fra
Headoound Zr8 2069 i7a 299
S1aM cots for the abowe persons:
Colfage Groug Coliega Group
024 2024 2027 2023
£ood Fii EQnD £000
Teaching dopartments (including Faculty Technlclans and othes
support staff) 7133 T3 LT G478
Teaching suppost services 1571 1,673 1,560 1,580
Administration and central services 14872 1472 TAG 148
Pramises Fiis 528 2di abd
Mo Gnerntion Atal 1 381 amo o
Appronticaship Lavy -~ * = %
Pension Doficit Charge 5 i
FRS 102 relirement banefit change T [T FfL-] an
Restrscturing couls = Contractual - - ki 21
Hon-contractual - - b i)
Movamasnt in holiday pay acorual (50 {500 ™ &
Dt a .
11010 11,283 10,538 10,784
Viages and salaries e B.233 5483 T.688 7,634
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i Agency Casts T T Ll 48 |
| Sacial security costs T4 885 880 A58 |
Qther pension costs 1,814 1817 1,418 1,418
FRS 102 retirement benefit charge (Tl (rE e ]
11,048 11,283 10,538 107E4 |
Emplayment costs for s1AM an padmanond contracts 10,682 10,956 5314 B.550
Employment costs for stafl on short-befm and lemperany contracts el &08 B8 R
FR3 102 retiremant benadlt charge (T8 ()] I i
noe 11,38 10,534 1".11.'5.'!-._J
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T. EMOLUMENTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT FERSDNKEL

Ky Management Personnal

Ky management personned are those persons faving authority and responsibilty for planning directing and conbroling the activiies of
ihe Coilege and ane repressniad by the Collge Exscutive Team which comprises the Principal, Deputy Principal and Assistant Princioasl

College  Group  Collige  Group

2034 2024 HrE3 023

£000 £000 Eiod (v i)

F ] 713 24 204
Banafils in kind 1 1 F 4 2
Pansion contributions Bl 83 &1 &1

Total 337 07 17 7
There wane 55 #nounls dui 1o ki management personnel paid for companaation for loss of office, that wens wanned in-yedr, sar any salary
Hﬂfﬂlﬂﬁmhpﬂu The above emalaments include amounts payable fo the Principal (Accousting Officer) fwhe |s also C
paid officer) of:

the highesi
Coflege T Colege  Group
20 20Xy
iy £000

200 2023

£000 £000
Salpries 14 1H 118 118
Banafits in kind 1 1 1 1
Sub Tolal 122 122 17 17
Pension coniributions 31 3 28 28
Todal 1583 183 145 145

The accounling oiicers anroiments represent muliples of median employes pay as foliows:

Calfege Grpup Coffege  Growp

2024 2024 2027 2031

Eda £000 £000 £o0d

Brincipal and CEO's basic salary s & multiple of the median of all stalf s 382 412 412
meﬂeu'smujmmﬁmulmuhmﬁnﬂﬂ 3E 342 4.2 4.3

Salary cosss for al key management periannel aie in ke with salary benchmarks for Senior pay 85 published by the ADC. Pay awards
@are paid at the same rate a8 thede Faaeded 10 other emplayess. The pension conlribetions in respect of the Principal and Serdcs Pest
holders are in sespec] of employer's conirbotions fa the Tedches’ Pansion Scheme and the Local Gavernimsn Pansion Scheme and
are paid @ the same mabe as for other emplkyses



Thp numingr of key management personned and other stafl who receined emoluments. exciuding pension conjributions but inchading

benefits i kind, in the following ranges was.

Collegs and Group
P ~ Range i w24 TR m; T W3
== e
E000 Ma 000 Mo

E60,001-£65,000 &1 3 B4 1
| Salares and Banafits on Kind

EBS,001-£70,000 &7 1 -
. Salanies and Banafits in Kind

E70,001 - ETE.O00 - T 1
Salaries and Benafits in Kind

E75,001 - £20,000 T8 1 - .
Salares and Benafits n Kind

EB5,001-£00, 000 = B8 1
Galaries and Banedits in Kind

EA0,001 -£55.000 a1 1 S0 i
Sinlaries and Banefits i FKisg

£115,001-E130,000

"r 1

alnrina and Benafits in Kind

EVE0001-£923,000

Salaries and Benefits in Kind 12 1

| Total 474 & 430 5

Mecbe. abive includes the hdl year value of one member of staff who stared in-yess,

The members of ihe corpeeation ofher than the Principal and the stafl members did not recsive dny panrint fram B insshaton
ptha ihan te meimbursament of el and subsstence expenses incured in e cowtse of thair dutes. Mo other stafl receved

emoiuments gver EE0,000

Compensation paid fo farmer key managemant personnsd.

Compermabion pasd 0 the former post halder

Estimabed vales of ciber conlractasl banafils, including provisions
pRnsions

Tatsd

for

Colloge  Group  College
024 M4 2023

£000

EOG

Enrgdments for key personnel are tet based on ADC benchmary mformad by mcome level and peromance of the colliege. This

benchmark & alsd edemenced 1o companasle sal aosvalenis regonal mies.

These senior pay disclosunes meet tha requirerments of the ESFA ang OE5 ooonding b0 deections.

4l

Group
2027
£




OTHER OPERATING EXFENSES

Tesching tepartmants.
Teaching sugpar ssrvices

Other uppan sendoes
ESFA Bumsarias

Administration and contral sorvices

General sducaion expenditure, including examination fees

Pramises codis

Sub=contracling

Othar Expansss

Total

Oithar operating expenses Include:
Audiors emunaration

Financial Stalemonts &udit

Othar services provided by the financlal statements auditors in
redatian i parsion redum, sub-contracior assurance lefler, grand

funding audits
Irtarnial At
Other serdices provided by the infernal audifors

Hire of oiher assots = opevating leases

Loss on disposal of ngible fxed asseis
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Caffege  Group
2024 2004
£onn £000

T4 714
180 150
880 550
24 ]
£i80 930
73 733
1822 1,535
130 130
2 2
8,060 5,082
Colfege  Group
2024 2084
£000 i
2 n
' 1
14 14
o 43

BT

1245

i.=a

5,179



8. INTEREST PAYABLE

i G o  2om
£000 Efo0 Eoo 009
FRS 103 pensicn fnance cost = - 43 &%
Enhanced pension provisian 12 12 8 8
Interest Charges B A p o
n 0 &7 &T
10, TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Group
Freehold
Land &
- - £o00
Cost or Valuation
Al 1 Augest 3123 1ATT i1 42,789
Additions Tz 23 1,085
Crsposab - . i
AL July 024 1845 5,935 43,684
Bepreciation
At 1 Ascust 2023 T30 (- 14,413
Charge for period &80 542 1,182
Faisarsad on Revalaation Resane sl ] . 23
Elifrgie] on deosais - . =
AL July 2024 &1z T./524 15836
Mot Book Value As At 31 July 2024 25637 a1 28,048
26, TdE 2,630 B ATE

Hot Beak Value As At 31 July 2023
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College only

Gost or Valsation
Al 1 August 2023

Agditiona

Dasposals

AL July 2024

Dwpreciation

At 1 August 2023
Chargs for paricd
Freleazad on Revakiation Reseve
Eirmrated on tiaposals

AL 31 July 2034

bt Book alus As At 31 July 2024

Hat Book Valus As At 11 July 2033

33,549

TAN

FEL

| If inheried land and bulidings had not besn se-valued they would have

Bean included at the following histosical cost amounts:
Cost

Aggregile depreciation based on cosl

Bl bl walue based on cosl
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T8

1,085

ATETD

16,837
28,045



11.

T reSies (o thae

UNLISTED INVESTMENTS

Secretary of Statp in Margh 200 7 commenced activity in the acadesmic year 201 THE.

Colege's invelvement i the Malional Colipge for Muclear (NCIN). The Mational College was approved by the

Trat Codiage ks 2 foursdiceg mambses of MCIN alongside Briggwater and Taunton Coliege, Sellafieid Lid, EDF Enengy Lid. Univerity
of Cumbria and Uniersity of Brisicl. The founding members ail share equal veling fghts. The MNCIN = estebished 1o suppon

ihe masiorad development of skdls o meet Nuclear Indusiry rdeds

12

13

Hatkonal Colinge for Nuclear
Todal

DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade deblors after prosision for bad debils
Prapayments and scoresd incoms

Amaunts owed by the Education and S¥ills Funding Agency

Tedal

CREMTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade creditors
VAT

Othar taeation and soclal security

Accruals and deldrred income
Qthor creditors

Catorrad INCOME = Qowerniment rovenus grants
Delarrad income — gevernmar capital grants

CIE Loan
Tetal

Collage
i
faney

H78

3,945

83 £

20T

1.285

TaT

Group
2023
1,382

175

850
334

4013



CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

College Group Caoifege
2034 2024 2023
£000 L1000 ]
Deferred inceme — gevarmment capital grants 22433 2242 2204
DfE Loan 1,000 1,000 -
Total 23433 T34 22,724
18, DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Group and Collage

The Coliege's employees belong to bwo principal pension schames, he Teachess’ Peraions Schema England & Wales
(TPS) for schdemic and miated staff, and the Local Govemment Pension Scheme (LGPS) fer nen-ieaching stad,
which ks managed by Cumbda County Council. Baih are multi-employer defined beneli schemes.

Total pension cosi for the year

Coftege  Group
Hgd
£00a

Coltege

2024 2023

£000 i
Teacten' Pengion Schimn; conbritulions paid 1,375 1.375 B4
Lical Governman: Pensicn Schems: Conbributions pasd 857 BE2 506
FRS 102 chargs e i T8
Lurrp sum defict . . e

LGPS entanced pardion chasge fo stalement of
cormprshenshee moome

Total Pensisn Costs within siaf cosis 2148 148 1,443

The pension costs 8r8 A3sessed in accomandcs with tha sdvica of independent qualified aciuaies. The lalest foemal
actuarisl valustions of the schermes wene at 31 Masch 2020 for the TES and 37 Mareh 2032 for the LGPE. Contributians
smounting to E18T, 858 [(2027-£134,793) were payable to the above schemes ab 31 July and are Peiuded within
credilors. An enhancid pension provision in respect of unfunded pensioners’ benefits is included in provisions delaled
i male 17,

Toachers® Pendion Schame

Tna Teachars’' Pansion Schame (TFS] & 8 stabsiory, conlribaubory, defined benefi scheme, governed by the Teachers’
Pension Scheme Roguiations 2014 Thess regulalions appdy bo teachers in schools and other educafional
astablishmants, including Goleges. Membenhip is sutomatic for teachers and leciurers, Teachers and leciurers &e
abig b opt cud of the TP3

This Teachers” Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account

ARhough members may B empleyed by vanous bodies, thair ratirement and other pansion beeality are sed oot in
reguiations madi undor the awmwr:mmmwp&mmmwm Tha TPS
is &n unfunded scheme and membsrs contribube on & ‘pay a3 you g0’ BEsis - these contributions, along with thees
made by employers, are crediled fo the Exchequer undes arangemants governed by the sbave Acl. Foediemment and
oehar pengion benelits ane pakd by public funds providad by Pasiament.

Tha Teachers’ Pensions Regulations 2010 require an anres! account, the Teachers' Pension Budgeting and Valuation
Account, b5 be kel of recipts and expendilure (including the cost of pension increases). From 1 Apil 2001, the
Account has besn credited with & real rabe of mbom which is equivsient fe assuming thad the balance in i Accoont
is invested in Aotional imsesimants That prodoce that real réhe of retum

Tha latest actuarial revisw of the TPS was carmied oul as al 31 Maoch 2020 The valuation repon was published by the
hpummmEﬂmﬁhmnDﬂ;mmunﬂdnhrm.mmmpmhdmmmﬂmmlmm
curmently i paymsnl and the estimated cost of fulure benafitsh for service &l the effectve date of £252 bilion, and
national assets (estimated hature contribubons together with the notional invesiments held 4t e valuation date) of
£333 hilion giving & notional past serice deficil of E4D billon (compared 1o E22 bilian in the 2016 valuation) As a
rasull af the valuation, new employer contrbution rates rose to 28.88% from Apell 2024 (comparsd o 23.65% frem
Seplember 2015 crwards).
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A flull copy af the waluation repont and supporing documentation can be found on the Teachers” Penakn Schame

Tha piinsion costs paid b TPS in thee year amounted to £1,008 351, (2022 £840, 147}
FRS 102 {28)

Lindesr the definifions oet oul in FRS 102 (28.117), tha TPS is & mul-amployer schema. The Colege is unable to idenlily
i&s shaen of the undardying sasets and liabiities of the scheme,

Bpcoedingly, the College has laken advasiage of e axomption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contribuliaf b
the scharme a3 if it wane a dafined confribution scheme, The College has sef out above the infcemation fvadalie on
the deficit in the schesma and the implicabiors for the Collegs in lérng of the aniiciaaled confrisulion rates.

Lacal Govarrsmant Pantion Schama

Thee LGES is a funded definied benalil Scharrs, with tha sidsis hald in sapanate fonds administered by Cumbria County
Coumnail,

Tre total contribution made for the year endsd 31 July 2024 was £851,534 (2023 E789.013) of which
cantributions totalled E535, 244 (2022 £595,6259) and employess contribulions folalled E206, 350 (203 188 374}
Trot aegresed cortreulion rales for eture pears ks 18 8% for employers; and employess rates ane caloulabed using LGPS
= Employas Contributions Procedures.

FRE 103

Thes folkredng wfcemation is based upan & full valaation of tha fund al 31 March 2022, wpdated fo 31 July 2004 by &
qualified indapandest Bciuary,

1.-“3-!.&# AT Judy

| o4 2023
Rale of ncreass in daleies | ¥ I.H
Ran of mcraase for pensions in paymentination 8% 208%
Dmcourd rate for schams labilibes. L1 S51%
Inflatcsn assumplion (CP) 2T% 2.7%
Commutation ol pensions (o lump sums 0% 5%

The abowe SiaurmpScss wen s & 31" July 3064,

The cument modality assamplions incede sutScient slowance for fubee Imgrovements in mostality rates. The
asaumed B epaciaticens on nirmant age B5 an:

At 37 Judy
it
Retiring today
Mgy 214 ks
F g 23,5 yeas
Fetiring in 20 yaars
Maies 227 yoaus
Femaies 25 B el
Sensitivity Analysis
At 31 July
s
Discount raie +0 5% (0. 1%) 17428
Discount rate -0 5% ().1%) {17 428
Mosigiry &ssumphor - | year mcreass 18 407
Muortality assumpion - 1 pear decfass [0 407
CP1 rabe +0L25% (0.1%) 19,799

G raha 0. 35% (0.1%) (19,789
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AL T Juiy
bk

21.4 yoars
238 years

327 yaars
Z5 6 yaars

Al 31 Juiy
7023

16,424

{16.424)

18,281
(12.261)

18,635
{18,638




The Growp and College’s share of assets i the schome 55 the expected rates of reluen were:

Tiotal fair plan value of asssls
Prasart valus of fundad labiities
Mot pension Assot

Wiglghted average expached kg tarm rate of return
Actusl reburn on plan asseds

Amounts necognised in the statements comprehansive Income
riflect of the plan

Amounts included in staff costs

Cusmant sarvdice cosis

Total operating charge

Amount nvoheed in vastment costs
Mat infaresl cosl
Pensien finance costs

Ampunt recognised In comprehensive incoma
Mnum” arsing on the achams Rbilons

E gainsosseas] on

Effact of nos-reccgniion of net Sefired banedil assel

Amaunt recogrised in other comprafensive Incoma

Movament in delich Im yoar
{Deaficity in scheme at 1 Augus

Fcrvaimant in yaar

Changs in basis of vahastion of schams assafs
Courant ssnvica cosl

Empiloyer contributions

Past service cogl

Cortaiimeands

Admenisiration axpenses

Wt e el Sl

Atuana {loasrgain
Effect on if nat defingd benedl assed
FurplusiiDoficit] In schome at X1 July

Value at 3 Walue at 31
July 2024 July 20F3
Enog E000

BB 8,286
3,390 2,788
1,538 167%
T 54
B 352 8,308
3,543 21,523
18,975 1T.BET
4,568 1,656
5% £1%
1,017 300
Y Year
Ended Ended 31
A?ugu Juily 2023
EnG0
o B4E
5] BB
204} 40
{204} 49
BB {655
{187) B33
1z} [, 658)
283 2,002
- (1,877}
(B35 (&)
el 598
28 (25}
e | {45
e & 558

B
, B
B
g

in accordancs with paragraah 64 of 1AS 15 and IFRIC 144, we R congidered the impact of bn asset ceding on B

recagnition of a5sets in the Statement of Financisl Position. An asset cailing i

t bt abowve which furihaer Romates in m

penaion sssets cease to be recognised for socounting purposes. As at 317 July 2024, an assel cailing Sotaling £912.000

was appled io i the recognition of a surplus on thi S,
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Changes In the presant vadue of defined benefit

alligatiens

Dafined benafi
Listilities at start of perod
Cunent serace ooal

Pret Sarvic Costs

interest cost

Employes contributions
Atairial (gainioss
Benefits (paid)
Curlaimants

Depfinagd beeniafit
Liabilities af end of period

Changas im falr value of plan assets

Fair value of plan
Andats af ata of period

Changs in bass of valuation of scheme assets

Interest on plin asests
Fatun on plan assets
Administration Expenses
Employar conbrntisns
Ermployes contribudions
Benefits nak

Falr valus of plan
Aswets af erd of pericsd

Yaar
Emndud 31
Jisty 2024

17 BET
536

-
218
187
(T3]

16576

21,523

1,101
B8
()
£4B
216

731}

23,643

The estimied valos of employer contributions for the year ended 31 July 2025 B £546,000 (200N 524 000,

Histary of axperiencs gaing and Dases

Diferonco bebaeen the
sxpacing and aciual mturm
an agsets;

iymepiant £000
Percantapn of schema
tiabisties

Experience gains ansd
lpsses on scheme sspis:

A mound 000
Percantage of schamas
liabatities

Total amount I'Hb"llllﬂﬂ'l
S0CI:
Ampunt £000

af schems
liakilites

1,713

Eid
4.3%

1.5%

45

e

1553}

2038

2918
¥k

13
(05%)

af

B%

23,263

196
B.313)
=d)

17 BT

21,584

a3
(B55)

156
v
S8

P

-
0.5%)



6. FROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Group and College

AL August 2023
Inderest

HActuarial [galn)loss

Transferred (o slatemaent of comprehensive Income

ALY July 2024

283 B Eﬁgii

The erhanced pension providion relaless i e cost of staff who have aleeady leflt the College’s
for receganisalion costs from which the College canmot reasonably withdraw at P balance sheed dale. This provision has been
recalculsted in accordance with guidancs Esusd by the lading bodies

The princips! Eidumplions 1or this calculabon ane:

- B Eﬁggi

18

126)
I3

and comemiments

2024 205
% -1 3
nbEIeSE 4
h'l:r:t.!.rul 28% 2E%
nl raly 2 8% TEM
Fundiag Fundpd
Provision BProvision
il e
Provision Frowision
034 2033
o000 0D
AL1 August 2023 - 40,000
Expenditurs in the pariod » {40,000}
At 31 July 2004 z 3
The provision relaies o “at sk’ inocene arsing from ESFA audi in Seplamber and Dotober 2002
17 RESERVES
REVALUATION RESERVE
Caitege Group Callage Froup
2024 2024 frioFi Fira
E000 Enod 000 L0500
AL 1 August 2023 i T arr arT
Frabsasad i yoar 23 23
2024
i 148 148 T T
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18.

DESIGNATED RESERVES
Panned Maintenance and Fsplacement Programms

3G Pitch Sink Fund
As ¥ 1 August 2023
Mavement in designated resarve
A5 at 1 July 2024

.ll'll}"r'EH-!.'EHT ON GENERAL RESERVES ACCOUNT

Al 1 Augusq 2023

Teanshrs (A Trom) Sesgnaied Mdrves

|Dehicit) on continuing operations after
depracialoe of REISEE 3 VUIDRR  EOEDToNal BT AN B

AL 31 July 224
Balance reprasentad oy:
PENSIN M

TRHEnvD

b3 Buly H0d

175

H

4582

25

(B0&)
4,052

4,052

1T&

4,889

{5

oy

4, Crd

4,034

4078

(25}

{2,053

4882

4 BiF

150
25

75

N

4,950

i25)

& 30

& B3

4,889

Restricted funds on Multiply contract were MiL as year-snd, income neceived in yoar of [47.928 with actiwity b thiks
valus deliversd and charged as expenaes,

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitrients relate 19 Civil Enginpering Training
Cendre, Redwctory Infrastructure, digital accelerator hub,
SOF fund, ICT devices, sport Rall floor, main site capial
grant funded improvement works.

Capitl commitménts

Commitments contracind for at 31 July

Autheraad Bof nol conlrasied Al 31 Juy

Tetal

il

Callege
2024
g

197

187

Group
2024
Lad

197

1a7

Coftege
2023
£000

T3

82

Group
e
Enag

g &



20, FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
AL 31 Joiy 2024 the College had minimum lsass paymants under non-cancellable operating ledses a8 follows:

Groaip and Callage
Land and  Land and Oifver Other
buliiags  buiidings
204 2023 024 2023
L ili] EnoQ E000 £000
44 15 =}
Expiring within ane year .
- i -
Expiring bebeeen twa and five years inclusive
Expiring aftar five yesrs
dd 26 &
21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the nature of the College's operations and the compasition of the board of governors
(baing drawn from local public and private sactor organisations) it & inevitable that transactions
will take place with organisations in which a member of the board of governcrs may have an
interest. All transactions involving organisations in which @ member of the board of govemnors
may have an interest are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the College’s financial
regulations and normal procurement procédures. Mo transactions were identified in respact of
governors which should be disclosed.

In year, @ governor with substantial nuclear engineering experience supporied the college on a
consultancy basis with the Sellafield Lid apprenticeship contract tender docurment. This was in
line with Charity Commission guidance and approved by the governing body, the value of the
work amounted £3 550 (2023:NIl),

There were no expenses paid o Governors in 2023-24,

The Mational Callege for Nuclear joint venture vehicle was established in 2017 as we do not hold
a confrolling interest. in the interests of full transparency we report the following. Related party
fransactions amaunt 1o £1,767 (2023; £4,266), being payment of Consultancy fees and pad sat
up costs agreed over § years (2020 insurance cover and audit fees for the Mational College for
Huclear), At the year-and date the National College for Muclear owed £10,734 (E£12,501 in respect

of the transaciions.

In July 2020, the College established a fully owned subsidiary company, Lakes College
Enterprises Lid, a3 a vehicle to provide services (o the College. On 1 August 2020 cul-sourced
cleaning staff were transferred fo this subsidiary company which will provide cleaning services
to the college. 3 staff ware part seconded 1o the subsidiary company o manage the company
and servicas. 2 Governors have been appointed to the Board. On 1% July 2021, out-sourced
catering provision transferred to the company. Related part transactions in the year amounted
to £253 640 (2023 €238 467). At the year end date Lakes College Enterprises Limited owed
£48 174 (£2023; £0,416) to the College and the College owed £69,078 (2023 £48,403) 1o Lakes

Caollege Enterprises Lid.

Transactions with the funding bodies and OFS are detailed in noles 1, 14 and 13,
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INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

In March 2017 the Collage enterad into a joint venture with Selafield Lid, EDF Energy,
Bridgwater and Taunion College, University of Bristed and University of Cumbria fo form the
MNational Colege for Nuclear, one of the government's flag-ship national colleges.

PFOST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

In autumn 2023 the Corporation astablished a financial recovery plan which was monitored by tha
Corporation in dedicated working groups and existing commétiees, With a worsaning cash position
and substantial in vear T-evel clawback, the college requested Department for Education support
with a loan of £1.5M to support working capital, received in June 2024. This avtomatically placed the
college into formal financial intervention with FE Commissionar (FEC) support, The working capital
loan provides stronger cash reserves. Thea cash balances, gross of restricted cash, have remained
above £1.5m io data.

Cn-going close monitoring of the oollege finances Is accompanied by a formal FEC Strategic
Options Appraisal (SPA) which commenced in November 2024 and is due to complete in March
2025, The purpose of the SPA is fo test the college's future sustainability and long-terrm financial
resilience, framed by the college’s ability to confinue fo deliver high qualty education and skilks
training. The SPA will inclede a standalone cplion companed 1o the option of merging with another
collage. The SPA will make recommendations based on consideration of the potential benefits of
merger and compare this with a standalone option

Where a merger is the recommended outcoma, tha aim will ba o sacura implementation ol the
marger by August 2025,

i3



GOVERNING BODY:

wites served on the Board he yoar and up 1o the of this no were a3 folloes:
o oL Corpomacn &
FEpO AT Resignation | Corporation
A office Commitiss
Meetings 2023-24
Independent
Mr Mg Prigstley 1T 3 Ayrs Corporation 100%
Chiak from G1E122-3107724 250914 Commitges 1005
Qualkty Working Group member Q1T T
Safguardng and Prevent Link Govemar 0140721
Finance and Corporate Wearking Geoup Mambar
| Financial Rsowary Groun
Kir Phi Jardine [T Corperation 0%
Wice Chair fram OTAOZI-31107724 (re-appoinimand) 2083 Commifiess 100%
Clualy Working (Group Member 3028
Chair, Finance and Cesporabe Warking Group T T
Financis Racovany Graup TR0E2
24 B miirs
Diresctor, Lakes Colisge Enbsmrisas. L
pan il ]

“Wirs Elaine Ginton ITETT] Tyr Corparalion 02%
Vice Chair, Comparation fneem 010324 (i3 fsntrls] 2Thy Commitiees 100%
Chair, Seaech and Govemance Commites 01123 4y
Audit Commiltes Membar
Chair Qualily Working Geoup
Enuaiity and Diversity and Leamsr Support Link Govamar
Financial Recaveary Graup feams 0170724

Mr Pglar ERwood R ) 1yms Corporatsn B3%
Meamber, Ficanca and Corporile Werking Geoup R0 Iym Committess 87.5%
Fingngial Recovery Group O AD124 Ayrs

Mrs AlSon Hamgdan [iglaetg:] 1w 3n T8%
Dhealty Working Growp Member QTR 215y Comritines 1008
Remuneralion Cammiltes Mambar piliel bk d d yie

Mr Nigel Hollday G 1yt Carporation S8%
Chalr, Comporation from 01/08124 0183720 2TEYy Commitiess 80%
Resmunerabion Commites member DAIED dyrs
Finance ard Corpoealn Warking Group
Marnber of Cuality Working Geoup
Direciee, Lakes Collpge Erppvises Lid JHCR0

Wirs Denise Rolo 1005 Ty Caorporation 100%
At Comnitgs Mermber Rns1e I¥'E Commilleas S0%
Search and Govemance Cammuties Meambe: QM 4 yrz

hithrlil_Hrn 105518 Tyr Covperation &3%
Chair, Audit Committes fram 231 1720 LTl dyrs Commiiees TO%
Financial Racovary Gaoup (e} foa) K dyrs

Mr Paul Hardon T Tyr i T

ot Iyrs

WArs Ciaing Dunin [T} Ty Corparabon 825
[Finance and Corparate Werking Growp marmbar a1mee Yy Committeas 80%
Remussration Commilbss membar

Wirs Vil Palligber FIGH=D Tyr Canporation 91%

Audil Commiies Member o 1524 Iyrs Commatigas 100%

Wiz 3 Stewart 22 Tyr

2311724 3y

&

* Appoiniments are made for one year

in the first instance and {ham Mee years (equivalont to a four-year tanm of office).

7 Wir Hardon was grasied @ Manve of sbsencs in J023-24 pwing o family illness and subssquantly maignad tom the Board
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[ Catagory Diale of Teem | Dale of Amendancs
appoiniment and | of Fesgralon Comporation &
resappointments Commities

Mestings 202324 |

Stalt

Mr Ghris. Matiress (Pancipal) [T TRE] Comporation 100%

Search and Gevarnance Commitise; Commisess S0%
Curnbria Cofleges Lad Board (dormant);

Mational College for Nuckar = Dingshor & Marmsr 180346

Feplagankaire

T%Mm___- 100720 e .

Lee 1732 Tyr | R310724 Corporation 67%
Audii Commitiee 1703323 Iyrs Commitbess $0%

s Kirshen Wiliamson 2082 Tyr REBAITI24 Corporation 52%

Wiz Elizabath Hull 2E0AI24 Tyr ria

"WAr Tyiar Mllingion 260874 Tyr | 2310624 i

Sludant Governors

Wiz Scphin Kaly ZA11723 Tyr To%
ITIOED4 1 yr

Mz Emily-FRoas Lane IR Tyr | 30724 [T

Merribars
Ms Merma Beyes D12 Tyt At Commalles
Co-opled member of lhe Sudil Coenmines 0102 Iy 100%
Dhseinr, Lakes College Erberprises Lid (e 1r s

REFORTING COMMITTEES AT YEAR END:

Audit Commilies; (8} Ramuneration: {4

R Miburm [Chai A Hampses

N Boyns (co-opied) M Frigsiey

L Todd N Holliday (Chari

b R C Durny

E Clinton

¥ PaNisier

Search & Governance: (5 Gually Warking Group: (5

£ Clindov (Chair)

M Prisstiey E Clinfon {Co-Chair)

P et N Holidey

C Nattross A Hampsan

£ Roda £ Jaring

Finance arnd Corparale Wanking Group; (5
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

:.rmr-ﬁ‘-tuﬂ';

Eifwood G Maftrgag {Pringiosd

M Priasthay K Wilsen {Deputy Pranoipar |

W Heilcey | Glaveianing ... {Vics Prinsipal)
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REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE CORFORATION OF
LAKES COLLEGE AND SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION ACTING THROUGH THE
EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (the ESFA)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 15™ Movember 2021 and further o the
requirements and conditions of funding in the ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracis, or those of
any olher public funder, we have camied oul an engagement 1o obtain limited assurance about whether
anything has come fo our attention that would suggest that in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Lakes College during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 have not been apgpied
to the purposes identified by Pariament and the financial fransactions do not conform to the autharities which
gover them.

The framewark that has been applied is sel out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) issued by
the ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concarning adult education notified by a relevant funder.
In line with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from the main funding
granis generated through the Individualised Learner Record (ILR) data returns, for which the ESFA has alher
assurance arrangements in place.

This report i made solely to the oorparation of Lakes College and the ESFA in acoordance with the terms of
our engagemeant letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporafion of Lakes
College and the ESFA those matters we are reguired to state in & report and for no other purposa. To the
fullest extent parmitted by law, we do noi accept, or assume, responsibility to amyone other han e
corporation of Lakes College and the ESFA for our wark, for this report, or for the conclusion we have Formed

Respective responsibilities of Lakes College and the reporting accountant

The corporation of Lakes College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further and Higher Education
Act 1982, subsequent legisiation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expendiure
disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parfament and the financial
ransactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Dur respongibilities for this engagement are established in the Uniled Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letles and the
requirameants of the Coda, We report o you whether anything has come to our attention in canming oul our
work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure discussed and meome received during the
period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 have nol been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the
financial ransactions do not conform (o the authonities which govern them,

Approach
We conducted our engagemant in accordance with the Codea issued by the ESFA. We performed a limded
assurance engagamant as defined in that frameawork.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is lo perform such procedures as to obtain information and
eyplanations in coder o provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion an
regularity.

A limited assurance engagemant i more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us 1o oblain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
Iha_t_might ke idenfified In 8 repeonable gesurance engagement.  Accordingly, we do not exprass a positve
QpHinasn,

Our angagement incledes examination, on a tast basis, of evidence ralevant to the regulariy of the college’s
income and expenditura.
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REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE CORPORATION OF
LAKES COLLEGE AND SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION ACTING THROUGH THE

EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (the ESFA)

Tha work undertaken o draw our conclusion includes:
= A review of the accuracy of the corporation’s seff-assessment of compiiance with regularity and

propriety requirements and review of appropriate evidence and docurmentation,

Review of expendilure systems for compliance with corporation policy and scheme of delegation.
Consideration of stalf expense claims n ling with policy.

Review of procedures in respect of government procurement cands.

Review of corporation minuies.
= Consideration of advisory matiers from intamal audifors reparts.

Conclusion
In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the

expendilure disbursed and income recelved during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 has not baen
applied o purposas intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the autharities

which govern them.

Yo s

Karen Rae, FCCA

For and on behalf of

Armstrong Watson Audit Limited

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors

DATE: ”i'l Decembar 2024
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